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MISSION STATEMENT We contribute to the advancement of society by providing people
¥fFm with quality products and employing advanced technology, with
protecting the environment always in mind. We hire and nurture
professionals and, together, we march towards our goals in pace
I with time. Putting customers first, we provide them with the best
| products and services, assuring win-win results.
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVE " To become the leading and most reputable and reliable technology-
T¥BE ' based electronics total solutions provider in Asia.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LAFEH
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March
Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)

Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share

(HK cents)

Special dividend, paid, per ordinary share

(HK cents)

Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share

(HK cents)

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March

Total equity

Net current assets

Net cash

Capital expenditure

Net assets value per share (HK cents)

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Current ratio

Debt to equity ratio
Inventory turnover days
Debtors turnover days
Return on average equity
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2016
HK$'000
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1,368,100
200,819
88,654
80,038
28.94

7.0

8.0

667,331
309,273
112,898
40,989
240.8

2.03
16.8%
56

48
12.2%

2015
HK$'000
—ET—RF
T

1,341,924
180,065
178,144
170,406

62.55

7.0
5.0

8.0

645,216
296,971
76,201
111,481
235.7

2.03
15.6%
53

50
29.3%

REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE =% = R8BI 54T

Electronic products
Moulds and plastic products

Total
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For the year ended 31 March
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1,354,320
13,780

1,368,100
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1,341,924
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REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT W51zt @ 9 4

The United States of America
Japan

United Kingdom

PRC (including Hong Kong)
Australia

Germany

Taiwan

Others

Total
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For the year ended 31 March
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277,427
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149,832
79,184
45,090
40,989
52,906

1,368,100
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560,669
311,398
180,847
164,547
53,718
5,471
65,274

1,341,924

REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHWE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
annual results of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“SUGA" or the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 (“FY2015/16").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

SUGA recorded turnover of approximately HK$1,368.1 million during
the year under review, representing a year-on-year growth of about
2.0% (FY2014/15: HK$1,341.9 million). The growth was the result
of increase in orders of some of the Group’s specialized electronic
products. Gross profit increased by 11.5% to HK$200.8 million
(FY2014/15: HK$180.1 million), and gross profit margin increased to
14.7% (FY2014/15: 13.4%). The improvement in gross profit margin
was due to the Group's introduction of new products with higher
profit margins and reflected the integration of the production facilities
of its High-Tech Industrial Park in Dongguan, which has helped
enhance its overall operational efficiency.

Profit attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$80.0 million
(FY2014/15: HK$170.4 million). After excluding the one off net gain
of approximately HK$117.0 million from the disposal of an industrial
land parcel in Buji, Shenzhen, China and the relocation expenses
incurred last year, profit attributable to shareholders increased by
49.9%. Net profit margin was 5.8% (FY2014/15: 12.7%) and basic
earnings per share were HK28.94 cents (FY2014/15: HK62.55 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0
cents per share (FY2014/15: HK8.0 cents per share) to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders of the Company
as at 12 August 2016. Together with an interim dividend of HK7.0
cents per share, total dividend for the year would amount to HK15.0
cents per share (FY2014/15: HK20.0 cents per share, including
special dividend of HK5.0 cents per share). Subject to approval by
shareholders at the 2016 Annual General Meeting, the proposed final
dividend is to be paid on or before 19 August 2016.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHWE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Electronic products, the Group's core business segment, generated
HK$1,354.3 million in sales (FY2014/15: HK$1,317.4 million),
accounting for 99.0% of SUGA'’s total sales in the latest financial
year. The segment offers diverse and all-round specialized electronic
products and solutions, giving the Group a stable source of revenue.

SUGA has focused on developing the specialized electronic product
market over the years and launched a number of core products,
earning the support of customers from different countries.
Committed to providing excellent products and solutions to business
partners, the Group is well-recognized by its customers, giving it
an excellent reputation that has enabled it to keep expanding its
customer base. During the year under review, the Group secured a
number of new customers in professional audio equipment, which
resulted in a satisfactory increase in income for the product segment.
With the Internet gaining worldwide popularity, professional audio
equipment need to transform and become better so as to be
compatible with smartphones and tablets. The Group’s extensive
experience in professional audio equipment and the R&D capability
of its technological team in “Internet of Things” (IOT) applications
have caught the eyes of new customers who selected SUGA as
their cooperative partner that they may have access to SUGA's
comprehensive services including product R&D and manufacturing.
These examples showed that the experience gained by the Group
in WiFi modules business in the past has allowed it to promote
development of its other businesses. The Group expects to develop
more innovative products for its customers in the future.

In the past few years, the Group has given more attention to the huge
potential of the elderly market. In fact, it started producing telephone
for the hearing impaired for a US business partner two years ago.
The scale of related production has expanded considerably in these
two years and is maintaining a satisfactory growth momentum.
The number of users has increased continuously and they returned
positive feedback on the product. The Group will continue to develop
new models for the business partner and add more functions to the
greater convenience of the hearing impaired. Such moves will not
only contribute profit to the Group, but also, through using advanced
technology to enhance product functions, create an all-win scenario.
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As for other core products, the sales revenues of pet electronic devices
and general consumer electronic products were similar to those
of the previous year. The Group continues to enjoy long term and
stable relationship with business partners in these product segments.
Orders in the smart card and NFC products have increased due to the
Group's business partners in the segment having secured some new
projects in Europe. Sales of interactive educational products dropped
substantially when compared with the same period last year mainly
attributable to a change in development directions of a customer after
it was acquired by a large Hong Kong listed company. However, the
drop in sales of the product segment was offset by the sales growth
of other products. The Group has quickly adjusted its strategies and
will be cautious in conducting business in this product market in the
future.

The Group has been expanding the pet markets in the past few years.
In Hong Kong, sales from pet food and pet product business recorded
notable increase during the year under review. Although the base
of the business is still small at present, the results of the business
segment have been encouraging. The Group launched a one-stop
online pet product sales platform (www.espetsso.com) in March this
year which has helped facilitate pet product sales. To prepare for the
foray into the pet market in China, the Group has set up companies in
the free trade zone in Nansha and Tianjin during the year. Moreover,
SUGA entered into an agreement with a Belgian pet food partner
during the year. Pursuant to the agreement, the Belgian partner will
produce quality pet food overseas that carry SUGA’s own brand.
With a good understanding of the China and Hong Kong markets
accumulated over the past few years, we believe our own brand
product formula will better suit the needs of consumers in the two
markets, conducive to the Group capturing greater market share in
China and Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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PROSPECTS

In 2016, pessimistic sentiments prevail in the global market. Looking
at the second half of the year, with the global macro economy facing
yet more complicated issues, market confidence is expected to be
weak. Nevertheless, SUGA remains cautiously optimistic about its
prospects and it will collaborate with business partners in meeting the
challenges and look for opportunities in this time of turbulence.

SUGA has maintained close communication with its business partners.
Its business partners in the US and Japan are confident of the future
and have been negotiating with the Group on R&D of new products
and different directions of cooperation, which SUGA believes will
turn into more business opportunities. As electronic product business,
the Group’s major business arm, is providing stable income and cash
flow for the Group and is now managed by respective subsidiary,
the management could place greater focus on exploring other
development projects with promising potential.

Since Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred joined SUGA in 2014 as its Executive
Director and Chief Technology Officer, he has brought to the Group
many innovative technologies and ideas and strengthened the
Group’s R&D team. SUGA unveiled a series of new products at the
Electronic Fair held in the fourth quarter last year, including a new
generation electronic Petble feeder which will be launched to the
market in the second half of the year. Given the increasing popularity
of 10T, the product will allow pet owners to more closely follow the
habits of their pets and thus improve their health.

In the past few years, the Group has been active in exploring new
businesses to broaden its income source and has strategically selected
pet markets as its major development focus. In the Hong Kong
market, with pet food and products achieving satisfactory sales
growth last year, the Group will continue to develop this business.
In the China market, the Group has established subsidiaries in the
free trade zone in Nansha and Tianjin to provide both online and
offline services to the pet markets in Northern and Southern China.
Moreover, SUGA will launch quality pet food of its own brand in the
third quarter of this year to meet the needs of pets in China and Hong
Kong. The Group expects the official launch of the product to further
drive the development of its pet business.
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Construction of Phase Il of the High-tech Industrial Park in Dongguan is
completed and fitting out works are in progress. The Group's Huizhou
plants are expected to be relocated to the industrial park in July. By
then, the Group’s production facilities will be consolidated boosting
its overall production efficiency. The Board will carry out in-depth
evaluation regarding the disposal plan of the land parcel where the
Huizhou plants now stand, with the aim of maximizing the benefits
for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend appreciation to the
entire management team for its dedication and contribution, as well
as to every member of SUGA's staff for their continuing hard work. |
also wish to express my gratitude to our business partners, customers
and stakeholders for their trust and support.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded revenue
of HK$1,368.1 million, representing an increase of 2.0% as compared
with HK$1,341.9 million in last year. The increase was resulted
from improvement of sales from the Group’s specialized electronic
products.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
that are used to make strategic decisions by the Group senior
management. The Group senior management considers the Group
business mainly from product perspective, and the products of the
Group are mainly divided into electronic products and moulds and
plastic products.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, sales of electronic products
increased by 2.8% to HK$1,354.3 million (2015: HK$1,317.4
million). The electronic products segment covers specialized electronic
products, general consumer electronic products and other electronic
products.

As for moulds and plastic products, revenue decreased by 43.7% to
HK$13.8 million (2015: HK$24.5 million) and accounted for 1.0%
of the group’s total revenue. This segment continues to represent an
important component of our vertically integrated production line, as
many of the products produced are directly used by the Group.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue
generated from the top 3 countries, the United States of America,
Japan and United Kingdom accounted for 73.1% of the Group’s total
sales (2015: 78.5%).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

During the fiscal year, gross profit margin was significantly improved
from 13.4% to 14.7%. The improvement was the result of success
integration of production facilities of the Group’s High-Tech Industrial
Park in Dongguan, which improved overall operational efficiency.
Gross profit for the year increased 11.5% to HK$200.8 million (2015:
HK$180.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEWE S

Operating profit was HK$88.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: HK$178.1 million). After excluding the one-off gain
of HK$117.0 from the disposal of an industrial land parcel in Buji
Shenzhen, China and the relocation expenses incurred in last fiscal
year, operating profit increased by 45.0% or HK$27.5 million.

Distribution and selling expenses increased HK$2.4 million primarily
due to increase in staff costs, consultancy fee and commission paid.
General and administration expenses increased HK$2.7 million mainly
attributable to the increase in depreciation expenses, employee
benefit expenses and the property tax and stamp duty of Dongguan
factory.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has achieved a net
finance income of HK$0.6 million (2015: net finance costs of HK$1.8
million). The improvement was due to the increase in interest income
received from bank deposits and customers.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, the Group recorded profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$80.0 million for
FY2015/2016 (FY2014/2015: HK$170.4 million). After excluding the
one-of gain of HK$117.0 million from the disposal of an industrial
land parcel in Buji Shenzhen, China and relocation expenses incurred
in the same period last fiscal year, profit attributable to the owners of
the Company increased by HK$26.7 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has current assets of HK$610.8
million and current liabilities of HK$301.5 million. The current ratio
was 2.03 (31 March 2015: 2.03).

Bank borrowings were HK$112.1 million as at 31 March 2016
(31 March 2015: HK$100.8 million). The increase in total bank
borrowings was mainly due to the drawndown of several new bank
loans during the year. Gearing ratio (calculated by dividing total bank
borrowings by total equity) was 16.8% (31 March 2015: 15.6%). The
Group maintained a net cash balance of HK$112.9 million as at the
balance sheet date (31 March 2015: HK$76.2 million).
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As at 31 March 2016, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$663.3 million (31 March 2015: HK$610.2 million)
from its principal bankers for overdrafts, loans and trade financing,
with unused facilities of HK$555.1 million (31 March 2015: HK$509.4
million).

The Group generally finances its operations by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong. Banking facilities used by the Group include revolving
loans, trust receipt loans, overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which
are primarily on floating interest rates basis.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s total capital expenditures for the year under review
were HK$41.0 million. The capital expenditures were mainly for the
construction of Phase Il of the High-tech Industrial Park in Dongguan
amounted to HK$25.3 million. The remaining balance of the capital
expenditures was mainly for the additions of machineries and
equipment for PRC production plants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transaction and monetary assets are principally
dominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars. The Group did not experienced any difficulties or effects on
its operations or liquidity as a result of the fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign exchange
contracts to manage the currency translation risk of Renminbi against
United States dollars. All these foreign exchange contracts were for
managing risk and it is the policy of the Group not to enter into any
derivative contracts purely for speculative activities. The net realized
and unrealized profit on derivative instruments as of the balance sheet
date was HK$3.8 million.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had pledged its office premise
located at 22nd floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon Bay together
with 4 car parking spaces to secure a bank mortgage loan of HK$12.4
million (31 March 2015: HK$15.2 million) for financing the acquisition
of the office premise and car parking spaces. Other than the said
mortgage loan, the Group had not pledged any of its assets as
securities for the banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a capital commitment of
HK$5.4 million for the construction contract and property, plant and
equipment (31 March 2015: 27.2 million) and a capital commitment
of HK$19.2 million for the equity investment in a subsidiary (31 March
2015: Nil).

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of the banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$663.3 million (2015: HK$610.2 million). The
facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 amounted to
HK$112.1 million (2015: HK$100.8 million). The Group did not have
any significant contingent liability.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016 the Group has approximately 1,995 employees,
of which 72 were based in Hong Kong and Macao while the rest
were mainly in Mainland China. Remuneration policy was reviewed
regularly, making reference to current legislation, market condition
and both the individual and company performance. In addition to
salaries and other usual benefits like annual leave, medical insurance
and various mandatory pension schemes, the Group also provides
educational sponsorship subsidies, discretionary performance bonus
and share options. A new share option scheme was adopted on 6
August 2012 which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the adoption date, detailed of which are specified in the Section “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 160 of this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 66 is the founder, chairman and managing
director and chairman of the corporate governance committee of the
Group. He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy,
strategic planning and development, and overall management of the
Group. Dr. NG has over 39 years of management experience in the
electronic industry and had been a lecturer in electronic engineering
at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for 4 years. Dr. NG holds
a bachelor degree in science from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a master of philosophy degree in computer engineering from
the University of Hong Kong, and an honorary doctor of engineering
degree from Lincoln University, USA. Dr. NG is a chartered engineer, a
fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology, UK, a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an honorary fellow of the
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration. In addition,
Dr. NG is an advisor of Technology Development Committee of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, honorary chairman of Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Council. He is chairman of Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association and Sir Cecil Clementi Scholarship
Foundation, Hong Kong SAR Education Bureau, and vice chairman
of Dongguan Electronic Industries Association. He is also a member
of the advisory committee on Electronic Engineering of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is the father of Dr. NG Man Cheuk,
Alfred, the executive director of the Group and Mr. NG Man Chun,
Anthony, the general manager of the pet business and the brother-
in-law of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer of the
Group.

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 58, is the deputy chairman and a
member of the corporate governance committee of the Group.
Mr. MA is responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall
strategic planning and policies, as well as overseeing the personnel,
administration and logistics of the Group. Mr. MA has worked with
the Group for more than 23 years and has over 34 years of experience
in the electronics industry. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in electronic engineering.
Mr. MA is the Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
Member, the member of Advisory Committee on Pro-Act Training and
Development Centre (Electronics), Electronics & Telecommunication
Training Board and member of Working Party on Manpower Survey,
Electronics & Telecommunication Training Board.
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Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, aged 35, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He is responsible for exploring new business
opportunities and overseeing Research and Development (R&D) of the
Group. Dr. NG holds Bachelor of Engineering (BEng (1st Hon.)) degree
in Computing from Imperial College London, Master of Science (S.M.)
and Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D) degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Computer Science from Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT).
His research focuses on modular hardware design methodologies
that can greatly reduce hardware development time. During his
time at MIT, he had collaborated with IBM, Nokia and Qualcomm in
various research projects. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. NG worked
at Qualcomm’s New Jersey Research Center for 3 years. He is the son
of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the chairman and managing director of the Group,
the nephew of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer
of the Group and the brother of Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the
general manager of the pet business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 58, is a non-executive director of
the Group. He holds a master degree in engineering business
management from the University of Warwick in the UK. Mr. LEE is the
founder, CEO of Kolinker Group of companies since its inception in
1983. In addition, Mr. LEE is the fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, committee member of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council Foundation Limited, member for the Soft-landing
Programme Evaluation Panel, member of Enterprise Support Scheme
Assessment Panel, executive committee member of the Hong Kong
Electronics Industry. He is also an honorary life vice president of Poly U
Development Foundation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 57, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree in accounting from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and a bachelor degree in social science from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a practising certified accountant of CPA Australia and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong respectively. Mr. LEUNG is also a
practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG
previously worked in Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited as
an assistant vice president in the International Finance and Corporate
Finance Department. He commenced public practice in auditing and
taxation since 1990. He is now the senior partner of a certified public
accountants firm. Mr. LEUNG has over 31 years of experience in
assurance, accounting, taxation, financial management and corporate
finance. Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-executive director of
C C Land Holdings Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited, Y.T.
Realty Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which
are companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
Mr. CHAN graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1977 with a higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He is now a senior partner of a certified public
accountants firm. Mr. CHAN has over 39 years of working experience
in accounting, auditing and taxation.
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Dr. CHEUNG Nim Kwan, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
He was Chief Executive Officer of the Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute (ASTRI), a 500-member R&D
organization in the information and communications area established
by the Hong Kong SAR Government. He has founded and served as
the inaugural director of the National Engineering Research Centre
for Application Specific Integrated Circuit Systems, the first National
Engineering Centre established in Hong Kong. Prior to joining ASTRI,
Dr. CHEUNG has held different research and senior management
positions at AT&T Bell Labs, Bellcore, and Telcordia Technologies.
He is a Telcordia Fellow and a Fellow of IEEE. Dr. CHEUNG served
as the 18th President of the IEEE Communications Society, a global
professional organization with 45,000 members in 180 chapters
around the world. He was Editor-in-Chief of the IEEE Communications
Magazine, and was appointed Chairman of the IEEE Fellow
Committee in 2012-13, where he presided over the selection of all
new |EEE Fellows worldwide. Dr. CHEUNG is an Honorary Professor of
the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and has served as Consulting
Professor at Stanford University and in the Research Grants Council of
Hong Kong. Dr. CHEUNG received his B.Sc. degree from the University
of Hong Kong, and M.S. and Ph.D. degrees from the California
Institute of Technology.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 58, is the chief financial officer of
the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing the corporate and
financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. LEE joined the Group in early 2005 and has over 36 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing. Before
joining the Group, he worked for a blue chip listed company in
Hong Kong for over 18 years in a senior executive position. Mr. LEE
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in accountancy. He is the brother-in-law of Dr. NG Chi Ho,
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Group and the uncle
of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the Executive Director of the Group
and Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the general manager of the pet
business.
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Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 46, is the general manager of
electronic manufacturing service (“EMS") division of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the operations of Block A, Qingxi factory.
Ms. WONG holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
China. She joined the Group in 2002 and has over 23 years of
experience in the electronics manufacturing industry.

Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 38, is the general manager of EMS
and pet training products divisions and is responsible for the overall
operations including programme management, order management,
supply chain management, product development and manufacturing
in Block B, Qingxi factory. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance and Economics from University of
New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. TENG worked for global IT and telecommunication
companies. He has had international working exposure in the USA,
Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand within those companies.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 52, is the general manager of
the marketing division. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. FUNG has over 30 years of
working experience in electronics sales and marketing.
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Mr. Ng Man Chun, Anthony, aged 33, is the general manager
of the pet business. Since joining the Group in 2010, Mr. NG has
been responsible for developing the pet business and managing the
wholesale and the retail pet business in Hong Kong and mainland
China. Mr. NG has also been involving in the development of the
smart pet products for the Group. Mr. NG holds Bachelor of Science
degree in Robotics from The Staffordshire University, Postgraduate
Diploma in Computer Science from The University of Birmingham
and Master of Business Administration from The University of Wales,
Newport. Mr. NG has accumulated experience on pet business in last
6 years. He is the son of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the chairman and managing
director of the Group, the brother of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred,
the executive director of the Group and the nephew of Mr. LEE Yiu
Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer of the Group.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are committed to
attain and uphold a high standard of corporate governance that
properly protect and promote the interests of its shareholders and
other stakeholders including customers, suppliers, employees and the
general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for CG Code A.2.1.

CG Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, the Group does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Dr.
Ng Chi Ho currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of long-term business strategies.
Going forward, the Group will periodically review the effectiveness
of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as Chief
Executive Officer when it thinks appropriate.

Save the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of the
Company is aware of information that would reasonably indicate the
Company is not or was not in compliance with the CG Code for the
year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group’s overall management is vested in its board of directors,
which now comprises seven members, coming from diverse businesses
and professional backgrounds. The Board consisted of three executive
directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy
Chairman) and Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, one non-executive director, Mr.
Lee Kam Hung and three independent non-executive directors ('INED’),
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim
Kwan (collectively the 'Directors’).

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the group’s
business and affairs; to review the Group's financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding decision. For
the financial reporting accountability, the Board has the ultimate
responsibility for preparing the financial statements. The day-to-day
management is conducted by senior management and employees
of the Group, under the direction and supervision of the Directors.
When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, such events or conditions will be clearly set out and
discussed in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs among
whom one has to have appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related finance management expertise. The role of
INED is to bring an independent and objective view to the Board’s
deliberations and decisions. The Company has received from each of
the INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs
are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) have been appointed
for a term of one year and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and
Listing Rules at each annual general meeting. Save as disclosed in the
biographical details of each director, there is no other relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the board.
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ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The Board is supplied
with relevant information by the senior management pertaining to
matters to be brought before the Board for decision as well as reports
relating to operational and financial performance of the Group before
each regular board meeting. At least 14 days notice of a regular
board meeting is given to all directors to give them the opportunity
to attend. Board papers are dispatched to the directors at least three
days before the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate
policies and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls. Risk
management and internal control are defined as a process effected
by the Board, management and other personnel, designed to manage
rather then eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance of the
following:

effectiveness and efficiency operations

- reliability of financial reporting

compliance with applicable laws and regulations

effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2016 including the consideration of the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget. The Board assessed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems by considering reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, executive management and the
independent auditors’ management letters, if any, and is satisfied that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
functioning properly.
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Four regular meetings of the Board and one Annual General Meeting R » HETIAERESTSEH L —INRE
were held during the year. The attendance of each director at the EEAE - KEBHBEH Y AHHIIWOT
meeting is set out as follows:—

Name of directors Board meeting
EEHH EEggE
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) RAZBLE(EE) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BERTEE(FEE) 4/4 171
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk RREBL 4/4 11
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Lee Kam Hung ERUHE ST 3/4 1”71
INEDs BYFHITES
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFE o 4/4 11
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PRI S A 4/4 11
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan SRAIE T 4/4 11
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua E=BRE i

(resigned on 1 October 2015) (R=Z—RAF+H—BET) 1/4 1/1

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING =8l

Based on the training records provided to the Company by the REZEZERAQNFIREZEIIZSEE  ER - &
directors, the directors have participated in the following training  ZFE &2 E LR -
during the year:

Attended training courses,
seminars, workshops,

Directors in-house briefs
HEEIRRE « g

5= TEY » REPRETHRE
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Ng Chi Ho REEEHL 4
Mr. Ma Fung On HBERKE v
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk RESEL 4
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Lee Kam Hung IR A v
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHIEE 4
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PRI S v
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan SRS E A 4
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua E=-PRE i

(resigned on 1 October 2015) (RZZE—hFTA—BEH) 4
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the
Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established four committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the corporate governance committee
(the "Corporate Governance Committee”). All the Board Committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who are Mr. Leung Yu
Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Ng Nim Kwan. Professor
Wong Sook Leung, Joshua (resigned as an INED, member and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 October 2015). The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven (appointed as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 October 2015).

The Audit Committee meetings are held not less than twice a year
to review and discuss the internal control systems of the Group, to
review the Group's interim and annual financial statements, and also
monitors the appointment and function of the Group’s independent
auditors. Additional meetings may also be held by the Committee
from time to time to discuss special projects or other issues of which
the Audit Committee considers necessary. The Committee’s authority
and duties are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:—

Member of Audit Committee

BEREREENE

R ERBESIIAT -

Meeting attended
HESZRE

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFFTHE

(Chairman from 1 October 2015) (B-Z—h&+A—BHRBETEF) 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PRINARSoE 2/2
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan SRS E L 2/2
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua E="PRE it

(resigned on 1 October 2015) (RZZE—RF+A—BET) 12

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2014/2015 annual report and fiscal year 2015/2016 interim
report, including the accounting principles and practice adopted
by the Group, reviewed and discussed the financial results and risk
management and internal control systems of the group, conducted
discussions with the independent auditors on financial reporting,
compliance, and reported all relevant matters to the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year 2015/2016
annual report in a meeting held on 17 June 2016.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven. No director or senior executive
will be involved in any discussion in connection with his own
remuneration. The meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall
normally be held not less than once a year

The Company has adopted a model where the Remuneration
Committee performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration of executive
directors and senior management.

FN - BREEREEN T/ /T4
FHRFEFEFHRE-T—0,/Z— X FHRK
FEFHRE  SRRASAREMRAZ
[RRINED] - FB M RARE 2 B EE N
Ko [\ B 3 I A RRERHR IS+ BB ST A BRAD &Y
WU BHRREAREE  YAEESERMA
HEEE -

BREBENER T AERATLART
B LEN T -1/ "R AFMRTE
T4 -

FMEES

FEZE S =—RBUIFATESMEK  £F
ARRTHEL - EFXSMTBRABK T
SHETBRERGZ2HH - FHEZEE—KRE
FEOTMDR—REH -

ARBCHRABFTHEZESERESSTRM 2
EBIEEL  EFEGERRENFRATESR
SREREZFHH

®



EEEREEERAA

2015/165F 3R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure. It also reviews and guides the formulation
of the Group’s performance related pay schemes. Term of reference
which described the authorities and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are publicly available on the websites of the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the contents of which are in
compliance with the CG Code.

During the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings was held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Member of the Remuneration Committee

ZEEZIRBERRERNNTEEREME
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FRHBTEAFHEREEH -
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Meeting attended

FHMEEEKE HEERRE
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFFTHE

(Chairman from 1 October 2015) (B-Z—h5+A—BRETEF) 3/3
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PRI S 3/3
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan SRS EE 3/3
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua RSO HUR

(resigned on 1 October 2015) (R=ZZ—AF+A—HEHD) 13

During the year the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors, non-executive directors, the INEDs, and
senior management; and reviewed the bonus to senior management.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March, 2016, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band is set out below:—

Remuneration bands (HK$)

ESNEREERE 25

HE_Z-—R"F=-A=T—HILLFE ahE
BABRBES D 2 HMEIIT

Number of persons

#FENsnE (B T) AZ
$0 to $1,000,000 0/87CZ1,000,000/87T 2
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,0017&7C 22,000,000/ 7T 2
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001787C% 3,000,000/ 7T 1

Further particulars regarding director’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 36 & 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs who are Mr.
Leung Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim
Kwan. Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua (resigned as an INED,
member and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1
October, 2015). The Nominees Committee is currently chaired by Mr.
Leung Yu Ming, Steven (appointed as the Chairman of the Nominees
Committee on 1 October, 2015).

The meeting of the Nomination Committee shall normally be held not
less than once a year. The Committee will identify qualified candidates
to fill the Board membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions as
to any change that may be required. The Committee’s authority and
duties are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

B ER RIS 1678F LA =B e 5 5 B
MAZBaEHEE ZiE—PHBHNERETE
RERMIFEI6 37 °

REEESE

REZBEHM-RBIUIIFRTEETRTHE
£ BRARBRRERRSISME AR - FrEmH
RER-_T-AF+A-HBEBLIERTE
= REAZEENERIF  -REZBEIR
BARFHEE(R-_TS—RAFTA—BEZ
IRREEERBEER) -

RAZBEMREBFRITIIN-REFE %
EeRNEFEXNELRZREVEEERA
BIRM UHIRAABUAEHESSEE - N
Ko E Bt e E R G A N st (R AT REFRT R &2
fEhEZ - TREG 2RO MBREHN S HBE
HERN - TEHNARE REBB N ZHE
uf o

®



EEEREEERAA

2015/165F 3R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year.
Details of individuals attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

Member of the Nomination Committee

BRI HERBEHINN T K

Meeting attended

REZESENE HESZBRE
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHFEE

(Chairman from 1 October 2015) (B-Z—h&+A—BHRETEF) 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PRI S 2/2
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan SRS E A+ 2/2
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua RS HUIR

(resigned on 1 October 2015) (RZZE—RF+A—B8&T) 172

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; make recommendations to
the Board on appointment of directors after considering their
qualifications and experience in relevant industries and re-election of
the directors subject to retirement by rotation under the bye-laws at
the 2016 annual general meeting and asses the independence of the
independent non-executive directors according to the independence
requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of an INED's independence; and (b) if an INED has
served more than nine years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy, where selection of candidates will be based on the
range of diversity perspectives as set out above, and the ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporation Governance Committee of the Company was
established on 21 February 2012. As at the date of this annual report,
the Corporation Governance Committee comprised of two executive
directors, namely Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) and Mr. Ma Fung On.

The role and main function of the Corporate Governance Committee
is to assist the Board in developing and reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance which are applicable to the Group
and making recommendations to the Board.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
include the duties set out in Code Provision D.3.1. (a) to (e) for
the time being in force. The terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee are available on the website of the Company.
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The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the
year. The attendance at this meeting is as follows:

Member of the Corporate Governance

Committee
TEEREEENE
Dr. Ng Chi Ho RExEL
Mr. Ma Fung On BETEE

During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
and discussed the new requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code of the Listing Rules and reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. The Company made specific enquiry of all
directors as to whether they complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code regarding their securities transactions. It was
confirmed that there was full compliance. The relevant employee who,
because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in possession of
inside information, have been requested to comply with the provisions
of the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. The finance department
of the Company is taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. With the assistance of the finance department, the
Directors ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant
regulations and applicable accounting principles.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group's independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC").
The financial reporting responsibilities of the independent auditors are
set out on pages 73 to 74 of this annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately HK$2,470,000
was payable to PwC for the provision of audit services. In addition,
approximately HK$555,000 was payable to PwC for other non-audit
services. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax compliance and
other services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Huen Po Wah, a
representative from an external secretarial services provider as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with
the company secretary of the Company is the chief financial officer,
Mr. Lee Yiu Cheung. Mr. Huen has duly complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The systems include a defined management structure with
limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in
the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Board believed that the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls and key areas of the Group’s system of internal controls
are reasonably implemented, which provide prevention of material
misstatement or loss, safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain
appropriate account records and financial reporting, efficiency
of operations and ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulation. The Board will endeavour its best effort to enhance and
improve the internal controls in all aspects of the Group, and will
regularly monitor the issues raised by the Audit Committee to ensure
appropriate remedial measures have been implemented.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and maintain
continuing relationship with the shareholders of the Company, the
Company established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for the
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board;

(i) publication of announcements and circulars on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i)  publication of financial statements containing a summary of the
financial information and affairs of the Group for the interim
and full financial year via the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company;

(iv)  interim reports, annual reports and circulars that are sent to all
shareholders;

(v)  notices of and explanatory notes for general meetings; and

(vi)  the management of the Group continually conducts meetings
with investors, analysts and the media, and provides them
with up-to-date and comprehensive information regarding the
Company'’s development and answers to their queries.

The Company also maintains a website at www.suga.com.hk, where
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information and news can always be found.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing through the contact details as
follows:
Address: 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre,
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: 2953 1523

Email: investorrelations@suga.com.hk
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting and
put forward proposals at general meeting. The procedures are as
follows:

(A) PROCEDURES FOR REQUISITIONING A SPECIAL

GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, shall have the right to
convene a special general meeting of the Company. If the
directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists representing more than one half of the total
voting rights may themselves convene a meeting.

The written requisition for the special general meeting can be
lodged at the Company'’s principal office in Hong Kong at 22nd
Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

(B) PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD

PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote
at general meetings of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders may, at their expense, provide a written request to
the attention of the Company Secretary signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for the shareholders to propose a person for
election of a director at an annual general meeting is available
for viewing at the Company’s website at www.suga.com.hk.

The above procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the
Company and applicable legislation and regulation.

Besides, the updated memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company has been posted on the website of the
Company at www.suga.com.hk and the designated website of
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of electronic products, moulds and plastic
products. Details of the principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by reporting and
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and discussion
on the Group's prospects, the Group’s compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which a significant impact on the Group, relationship
with its key stakeholders and environmental policy, as well as
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 March 2016 and the material factors underlying its financial
performance are set out in the “Chairman Statement” on pages 9 to
13, “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 15 to 18 and
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 66 to 72 of
this annual report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing is provided in the “Chairman Statement” on pages 9 to 13.
Additionally, the financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Company can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 77 of this annual
report.

An interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share were paid
during the financial year. The Directors have proposed the payment of
a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended
31 March 2016. Total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016
amounted to HK15.0 cents per ordinary share.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (continued)

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 8 August 2016 is
expected to be paid on or before 19 August 2016 to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders of
the Company on 12 August 2016.

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed for the
following periods:

(i)

The Register of shareholders of the Company will be closed
from 4 August 2016 to 8 August 2016 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares in the Company will
be registered, for the purpose of determining the identity of
the shareholders entitled to attend and vote at 2016 Annual
General Meeting. In order to qualify to attend and vote at
the meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 3 August 2016.

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed on
12 August 2016 during which day no transfer of shares in the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of determining
the entitlement of the shareholders to receive the proposed
final dividend. Subject to approval of the shareholders at the
2016 Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend will
be payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Shareholders of the Company on 12 August 2016.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 August
2016.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

SHARE CAPITAL ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company shares
issued in the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS - SHARE
OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND
SELECTED EMPLOYEES

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year is
set out in note 25 of the financial statements and “Share options”
section contained in this Directors’ Report. For the share options
granted during the year ended 31 March 2016, no shares were issued
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2016 calculated
under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to HK$98,478,000 (2015:
HK$109,156,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$692,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment property of the Group is set out in note 6 and note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRE

BANK BORROWINGS

Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2016 are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 188 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. Ng Man Cheuk (appointed on 1 May 2015)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof Wong Sook Leung, Joshua (resigned on 1 October 2015)
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ma Fung On, Mr.
Lee Kam Hung and Mr. Chan Kit Wang will retire by rotation in
accordance with Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws. All the
retiring Directors are being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors is appointed for a term of one year.

2015/165F 3R

RITEE

RZE-ARFZA=+—HAZRITEEFFH
RERE TS RRMTTE22 -

RIREHE

RIRETEIFFHIBEN R A B MR M40

hFHHHRE

ANEEBERETRFE 7 EEREENARE
BMEHNAFHRE188H -

EEREERHBSH

REFERBEAREANAATZES
T

HITES

RExBL(ZE)

BERTLE(BEE)
RREBTH(R_T—HFRA—BEZHE)

FHITES
R E

BAFHTES
BRSHER T —AF+A—HEHE)
RF#ITE

RANZEEE

SR

REARAR ZABANFE NG FELRK
A FERESR A KRN ST A K e fE A R
FAEWMESE 2BRIEFSEBRAME
BEREL -

BIRRTEERBIFRTERTZEZEEHR
—fE .

®



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 September 2002 and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On, being
Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2004 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, being Executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 May 2015 and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Directors consider the share option scheme, with its broadened
basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees,
Directors and other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retention
of high caliber professional’s executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 August 2012, the
Company'’s share option scheme adopted on 17 September 2002 (the
“Old Share Option Scheme") was terminated and cease to have any
further effect except that the Old Share Option Scheme will remain
in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of the
options granted thereunder prior to termination thereof. A new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme"”) was adopted which
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme and will expire on 5 August 2022.

For details of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 5 July 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1.

PURPOSE OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant Options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The Directors consider the New Share Option Scheme will
enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors and other
selected participants for their contributions to the Group and
will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of
high calibre professionals, executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Directors (which expression shall, for the purpose of this
Appendix, include a duly authorized committee thereof) may, at
their absolute discretion subject to the Listing Rules, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of participants,
to take up options to subscribe for Shares:

(@ any employee (whether full time or part time including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(b)  any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(¢) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

2015/165F 3R

B ERE 2

BRRE Bl Z T2 T T

1.

HBRETEZBE N
REBEZMBRETBAETL2EA
ITREBEE  (FREEZFALAA
SEFTEERZ 2R BN ZS -

ESRR - MBERETEBERAE
EMERAAKREIFLERMZEER  EF
REMETLEAL - WEBRAEKHE
REIREUAREEREEY 2SE
FEXAR - TTHRABRES -

AT 2 E A+

£ ETRAIMERT - E=(FhAK &M
T OAMERREZAREZZES)A
2RBBERATBEBUTEAENZ2
HBALTZEMALESZAIRERDZE
[t

(@) ARAE -~ EAIAIMHE R R
BEBZEMNRE (ZRSGRE
BREEAVTES - BETEREREN

FHTER)

(b) ART) -~ EAEFIHE QRS ERE
BERZAIMNFERTEE (RS
NIEHITESR)

(0 MARKEEAKERFHAEMK
éf:é 2 P fn Sk RS 2 (R

d AEBEEFKER
BEAER

A EMREE

() MAKEEMKEARHEMEE
BEREMHMT  FEREMRIX
RZEMALRER

®



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2.

WHO MAY JOIN (Continued)

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

For the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme, the Options
may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any Options by the
Company for the subscription of Shares or other securities
of the Group to any person who fall within any of the above
classes of participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors
otherwise determined, be construed as a grant of Option under
the New Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of participants
to the grant of any Options shall be determined by the Directors
from time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
SUBSCRIPTION

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
exceed 10% of the issue share capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
47,048,000 shares (including 23,555,000 shares subject to
options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
which represented 16.97% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

4.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group (including both exercised, cancelled or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of
Options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders and the
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company
with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
The number and terms (including the exercise price) of the
Options to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
Shareholders’ approval and the date of Board meeting for
proposing such further grant should be taken as the date of
grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise price under
note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of
the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an Option.

EXERCISE PERIOD OF AN OPTION

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day upon which the offer for
the grant of Options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the Option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.
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BERTBRNBE  THEBAERAR
AR BEITRAZ 1% (EAREE]) - RE
ERBBEINEREE R (BEZA) LE
W+ —EARE HEBLEARBEZ
BINBERELALHARRTERIR
ERRNIRRAE LitE  mMAMSHE
ERBBBEALARERR - HET
BR2REZBREZHE REK (B
1TEE) ARBERIERNEE - MRE L
mARAIE 17,03 R () BEITEEM
FOREAWMESRIBREZES
SEE A HEMER AR LA -

BEERBEZEE
MBS R TN cRBEKHE
FEE  ETAFERUATRSE - ()RR
ERDEHM(BAR/EXER) RONER
PrERRERMBETE : NERRE2
BREBEMAAERSARMRERME
BMERTRFHWHE : R mE
18 ° PR LB B 11.00/87T
ZEEENE -

BB 21T

A RIB AR 8l Z RN E
EETERAEEARAZ AEARERTT
& - ARAMEAIRMELRZ2R L BRE
BEIR - HEERNAREANK LB
P B R R T E - IIRBEMRE
PRATARLE
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

7.

TIME AND PAYMENT ON ACCEPTANCE

An offer of the grant of the Option may be accepted by a
participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of
the Option and the Option in respect of the number of Shares
in respect of which the offer was so accepted will be deemed to
have been granted on the date of grant of the Options.

MINIMUM PERIOD AND PERFORMANCE TARGETS
Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer of the grant of Options to a grantee, a grantee is not
required to hold an Option for any minimum period nor achieve
any performance targets before any Options granted under the
New Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
till 5 August 2022. After the expiry of such valid period, no
further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect.

Details of the share option movements during the period from 1
April 2015 to 31 March 2016 under the Scheme Option Scheme
are as follows:—

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

BARERTE 2

7.

Number of share options

LI

Exercised
during
the period

Granted
during
the period

Outstanding at
1 April 2015
K-5-1F
mA-A

GESHI Lo Bt

Dr.Ng Chi Ho BEMEL

>Ho

ol

2,200,000 - -

Lapsed

during  Outstanding at
the period

BARN

BEANRSFIR I A9 3K
SEEAMNMESRLBEREZRE21R
NEREERNBEEE - BREAMLER
NN RIS K B 88 B RO B ROHE 7 35
BRERBRERHBHRL -

REHERRREE
BREZZTTRERRAARARZRL
BRI - AR ARBRIBIRER
RS R I MERE R T ERHA
AT & A 5 A BB B SOE AR )
RIBIE

BB AERT Bl 2 RIBRF B

BREIABREBEE_T-_—_F/N\AR
AATEM R AR  HERHARBRER
RERAK LRIER - NBRBE MM
FEmE - B TR HBEINER
o EBRESAEZREEMBEMS
EEEEE AR -

H-_ZE—RFNA—HBE_ZT—RF=
B=+—BHERA  BRETZETNZ
BREEES BT - —

Exercisable
period

Date of
grant

Exercise
31 March 2016 price
R=E-AE
ZR=t-A

BT i
(HKS)

(57)

RipH T8

2,200,000 215819 January 2015 19 January 2015~
“5-RF 18 January 2020

-AThA 1%

-AthEZE

3

-AtNE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

Dr. Ng Man Cheuk

Mr. Lee Kam Hung

Prof Wong Sook
Leung, Joshua
(resigned on 1
October 2015)

Mr. Leung Yu Ming,
Steven

RREL

PRk

%

Outstanding at
1 April 2015

RZE-1f
mA-A
R

1,000,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

Granted
during
the period

L

2015/165F 3R

B ERE 2

BRESE RIRTFH(#)

9.

Number of share options

EREZE

Exercised
during
the period

Bnfie

1,000,000
(Note 1)
UiE1))

Lapsed
during
the period

AREN

Outstanding at Exercise Date of
31 March 2016 price grant
R
Zh=t-H
AT i@ RiHRE
HKS)
)
- 215819 January 2015
I k3
-AThA
200,000 1780 21 March 2014
I Syit3
ZA-t-E
200,000 1780 21 March 2014
e i3
ZA=t-A
200,000 1780 21 March 2014
Z5-IE
=Azt-A

Exercisable
period

fried

19 January 2015~
18 January 2020
I k3
~AthEE
2

~At/H

21 March 2014-
20 March 2019
“EFIE
o i = 2
ZE-NE
ZA-1H

21 March 2014-
20 March 2019
Z5-IE
ZAzt-BZ
“FhE
SA-tH

21 March 2014-
20 March 2019
“5mE
ZA-+-RE
Z50E
“A-1H
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

BARERTE 2

BRESE RIRTFH(2)

9.

Number of share options

EREZE

Granted Exercised
Qutstanding at during during
1 April 2015 the period the period

RIE-RE
mA-A
kR {T{E B B

Mr.ChanKitWang AR A 200,000 -
Continuous Contract~ F5EANES 110,000 - 110,000
Employees (Note 2)
UiE2)
Continuous Conract ¥4 4ES 240,000 - 204,000
Employegs (Note 3)
(33)
Continuous Contract 584 #ES 1,948,000 - 1,398,000
Employees (Note )
(M)

Lapsed
during
the period

AREN

100,000

Outstanding at
31 March 2016
HN=E-7E
ZB=t-H
AT

200,000

36,000

450,000

Exercise Date of
price grant

i@ RiieH
(HKS)

1780 21 March 2014
5-IE
o

1331 29 April 2010
TE-EF

BAZTNA

1750 21 October 2011
5—-&
th-t-8

1780 21 March 2014
e Sia
=A-t-8

Exercisable
period

T8

21 March 2014-
20 March 2019
25-IE
ZA-+-RZ
ey k3
SAZtH

29 April 2010-
28 April 2015

-
— <

EA-+NEE
“E-nf
MmA-t/\B

22 October 2014~
21 October 2016

“5-IF
tA-tzBZ

—Fm_ L
%N

TAZ+-A

21 March 2015-
20 March 2019
ik
o
I50E
ZA-1H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

Continvous Contract~ EA4EE
Employess

Continuous Contract ~ FSEANES
Employees

Continuous Contract 4 41ES
Employees

Continuous Contract ~ SEANES
Employees

Outstanding at
1 April 2015
W-E-1f
mA-A
GESid

2,000,000

Granted
during
the period

L

4,700,000
(Note 6)
(Kisto)

10,000,000
(Note 7)
(Hisk7)

4,210,000
(Note 8)
(histe)

2015/165F 3R

B ERE 2

BRESE RIRTFH(#)

9.

Number of share options

EREZE

Exercised
during
the period

Bnfie

700,000
(Note 5)
(H3s)

Lapsed
during
the period

AREN

Outstanding at
31 March 2016
H=E-7E
Zh=t-H
AT

1,300,000

47700,000

10,000,000

4210000

Exercise
price

iR
(HKS)

2158

2.260

2.800

2142

Date of
grant

RHiAg

19 January 2015
I k3
-AThA

10 July 2015
“5-1F
tAtH

16 July 2015
k3
tAtA

7lanuary 2016
ERE

~RtR

Exercisable
period

fried

19 January 2015~
18 January 2020
I k3
~AthEE

“E-TE

-7

~At/H

10 July 2015-
9 July 2020
ik
tATEE

—F—F
2~ %
—L-%

tAhR

16 July 2015-
15 July 2019
5-1F
tAtrRE
ZENE
tATEAR

7 January 2017-
6 January 2021
5tk
—-RtRE
“5o-F
i
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

9.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BT Ee)
REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME 9. BRESTEIZRIERFH &)
(Continued)
Number of share options
BRESE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Outstanding at during during during  Outstanding at Exercise Dateof  Exercisable
1 April 2015 the period the period the period 31 March 2016 price grant period
N-%-1f R
BA-A ZR=1-A
BT BEH P BA{TE iR REE% s
(HKS)
QOthers =) 200,000 - - - 200,000 1780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-
ZE-ME 20 March 2019
ZRZt-R E2IF
ZRzt-RE
e Sy k3
Shot8
8,498,000 18,910,000 3,412,000 100,000 23,396,000
Notes: Bst
1. During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the 1. RAMBRFE  ARARORERE

Company'’s share immediately before the date on which 1,000,000
share option were exercised was HK$2.503.

During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date on which 110,000
share option were exercised was HK$2.329.

During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date on which 204,000
share option were exercised was HK$2.355.

During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date on which 1,398,000
share option were exercised was HK$2.405.

During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date on which 700,000
share option were exercised was HK$2.410.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the
date (10 July 2015) on which the share options were granted, was
HK$2.210.

1,000,00017 B A& EMET T & B Ril2 hnAEF
BB A2.503% T °

2. REABRFE  RQABRHONEE
110,00017 BE AR #E & 7T & A Bl Z INETF
B EA2.32978 T ©

3. RAFBRFEE ARaBRHOREE
204,00017 & AR #EE 1T & B AT 2 hniE
R T{E A7%82.3557C °

4. REAGRFEE  RRABRHORNERE
1,398,00017 B A& REMET T & B A2 hnAEF
BB 524058 7T °

5. RAGFBREE A2 BKOHREE
700,00017) B8 B #E M 1T 2 B A 2 M4 F
B EA2.41087T ©

6. ARBOAREEBREEREER(=ZE
*ﬁitﬂ+5 )ATZ W{E A2.210/87T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

7. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the
date (16 July 2015) on which the share options were granted, was
HK$2.330.

8. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the
date (7 January 2016) on which the share options were granted, was
HK$2.120.

Details of the share option movements during the period from 1
April 2016 to 23 June 2016 under the Scheme Option Scheme
are as follows:—

2015/165F 3R

B ERE 2

9.

BRE Sz RerF e

Wikt - (4)

7. ARARHREEWEREELE (=
F-AFLA+RA) A ZRTER2330

ABTT e

8.  AAFBRMHNEBEEBREERHEA(ZZ
—NEF-ALR)AZETER2.12087T

H-ZE-RFOA-HE-ZT—RFAX
AZ+=BHRAR  BERETERTZ
BREZEFFENOT - —

Number of share options
BREHR
Granted Exercised Lapsed

Outstanding at during during during  Outstanding at Exercise Dateof  Exercisable
1 April 2016 the period the period the period 23 June 2016 price grant period

NoB-RE RZE-RE

mA-A ~A=T=H
WAfTE Bkd Bk Bkx AT fikE RiHEE i

(HKS)
()
Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL 2,200,000 - - - 2,200,000 215819 January 201519 January 2015-
Z5-RF 18 January 2020
-AthA Z5-1E
~RThRE
v 2
-AtNB
Mr.leeKeamHing — ZHExE 200,000 - - - 200,000 1780 21 March2014 21 March 2014-
ZE-IE 20 March 2019
ZAZt-R CEmF
ZA=t-R%
“ENE
ZA-1E
Prof Wong Sook EEoAR 200,000 - - 200,000 1780 21 March2014 21 March 2014-
Leung, Joshua (M=E-1f% ZE-ME 20 March 2019
(resigned on 1 TH-BEE) -f-t-H “E-ME
October 2015) ZA-+-RZ
TN
ZA-TE
(=)

)



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BARERTE 2
9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME 9. BRESTEIZFerFER (&)
(Continued)
Number of share options
BRESE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Outstanding at during during during  Outstanding at Exercise Dateof  Exercisable
1 April 2016 the period the period the period 23 June 2016 price grant period
R2B-7E RIE-RE
BA-A ~A=T=A
BT HhR B X BRATE il REE% s
(HKS)
(%7)
Mr.Leung YuMing, ~ 2FH#%4E 200,000 - - 200,000 1780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-
Steven ZE-ME 20 March 2019
Rzt-B  ZE-BE
ZAzt-BZ
ey k3
Shot8
Mr.ChanKitWang ~ BAEEE 200,000 200,000 1780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-
“Z-I0E  20March2019
=A=t+-A I5-[E
o i = 2
ZENE
ZE-+8
Continuous Contract ~ #E44ES 36,000 - 16,000 - 20,000 1750 21 October 2011 22 October 2014-
Employees (Note 1) ZF——% 21 October 2016
(Kgzk1) tBzt-B  ZE3-B&
+A=tzR%
ERE
+thot+-8
Continuous Contract B4 1EE 450,000 75,000 - 375,000 1780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015-
Employees (Note 2) “E-ME 20 March 2019
(k) ZRt-B  E-If
SRZt-RE
E0E
ZA=tH
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

Continuous Contract
Employess

Continuous Contract
Employees

Continuous Contract &4 41ES

Employess

Continuous Contract ~ SEANES

Employees

FRANER

HEANER

Outstanding at
1 April 2016

RZE-RE
BA-A
R

1,300,000

4,700,000

10,000,000

4,210,000

Granted
during
the period

L

2015/165F 3R

B ERE 2

9. BRERTEZNGRFHE)

Number of share options

EREZE

Exercised
during
the period

Bnfie

the period

Lapsed

during  Outstanding at
23 June 2016
R
~AZtZH

AREN AT

- 1,300,000

- 47700,000

- 10,000,000

250,000 3,960,000

Exercise

price

2158

2.260

2.800

2142

Date of
grant

RHiRg

19 January 2015
I k3
-AThA

10 July 2015
“5-1F
tATH

16 July 2015
k3
tAtA

7lanuary 2016
ERE
~RtR

Exercisable
period

fTieH

19 January 2015-
18 January 2020
I k3
~AthEE
2

~At/H

10 July 2015-
9 July 2020
ik
tATEE

—F—F
2~ %
—L-%

tAhR

16 July 2015-
15 July 2019
1%
tATARE
ZENE
tATHA

7 January 2017-
6 January 2021
5t
~RtRE
“5o-F

i
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9.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

BARERTE 2

REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME 9. BRESTEIZRRFEH£)
(Continued)
Number of share options
BREsA
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Outstanding at during during during  Outstanding at Exercise Dateof  Exercisable
1 April 2016 the period the period the period 23 June 2016 price grant period
RZE-AF RB-RE
mA-A ~A=T=HR
HASTE Bkl Bk Bngi AR ik RiHRE ik
(HKS)
QOthers =) 200,000 200,000 1780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-
ZE-ME 20 March 2019
SAZt-R 0 ZEIF
ZRzt-RE
e Sy ik:3
ZAZ1E
23,896,000 - 91,000 250000 23,555,000
Notes: Bt -

During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the
Company's share immediately before the date on which 16,000 share
option were exercised was HK$2.175.

During the financial year, the weight average closing price of the
Company's share immediately before the date on which 75,000 share
option were exercised was HK$2.194.

1. RABEREE + AR BRI EH 16,000
DIBAREREITEE B AT 2 INEF KT E
B2.175%8 7T °

2. RAMEEE - ANAERRGH R EEE75,000
DEBAERTEE B AT 2 IEFH U T E
21948 7T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and the short positions of the
directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they have
taken or deemed to have under such positions of the SFO) or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:—

LONG POSITION

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

(@) Interests in shares of the Company

2015/165F 3R

ESRKRM 2 ER

RZZE—RNE=ZA=+—H ARRESEAA
NEIRET AR EE(EE LES MPEK
BI(T &% REAEER ) EXVER) 2 i&fn - A
D REHFT - BEREES REEHEXY
HETRSH AR EEAMNGARNRREEBHE
REGMBRAB([HBRAT]) ZESRAR (R
FEREFAFRIEGINEBIGE X IEEHREL
EERBCEERKE) AR AREES
KB IGHIE3I52GEFE 2 B it 2 koK
B RRELTRARERETESRINIZE
SPRN(TZESPAI ) A S AR R R T2 4
HEORBWT © —

R
RERE 2B RATBINE 19 2 e

@ RAEARBIRDZ B

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Name of Director Capacity

5t ht

Number of shares

£ Enff ante

SRERIERZERRHA

Number of
Percentage of  underlying shares
issued ordinary

held under
shares equity derivatives
BRAERR RAGTETRET
e RERG A
(Note 1)

Total interests

Dr. Ng Chi Ho REZEL Beneficial owner 6,930,000 162,278,000 58.54% 2,200,000
EEZBBA
Interests of controlled 45,348,000 - - -
corporation (Note 2)
REEEER (fzk2)
Founder of a 110,000,000 - - -
discretionary trust (Note 3)
RRETAINE (Fz83)
Mr. Ma Fung On gt Beneficial owner 4,323,000 14,223,000 5.13%
EXZBBA
Interests of controlled 9,900,000 - - -
corporation (Note 4)
SRR (Fizk4)
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued) EERRD 2R e

LONG POSITION (Continued) HE#E)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the RER Gz R RIGEE IR (72w ()
Company (Continued)

(@) Interests in shares of the Company (Continued) (@) RALNGIRGZ # (#)

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
SREEETZEBREA

Number of
Percentage of  underlying shares
issued ordinary held under
Name of Director EES Capacity Number of shares Total interests shares equity derivatives
BRTEER RAEIRET
a4 Rir%E f Baflt  FEEBRAHE
(Note 1)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk RRFET Beneficial owner 1,000,000 111,000,000 40.04%
ERBEA
Beneficiary of a 110,000,000
discretionary trust (Note 3)
PRETXEA (Fp3)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung TREEE Beneficial owner 1,383,200 2,441,000 0.88% 200,000
EZBBA
Interests of controlled 1,057,800 - - -
corporation (Note 5)
TIEEERE (F3ts)
Prof Wong Sook Leung, BESHR(N-Z—R%  Beneficial owner 220,000 220,000 0.08% 200,000
Joshua (resigned on TA-HET) ERABA
1 October 2015)
Mr. Leung YuMing, Steven 285 Beneficial owner 330,000 330,000 0.12% 200,000
ERAEA
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BARTE Beneficial owner - - - 200,000
EZBBA
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan FomEL Beneficial owner - - - 200,000
EEBBA

Notes: Biet -

1. These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the 1. BRARMEARRARMELERES R 28
share opinions granted by the Company, the details of which are set R - B BEN ERE S
out in the sub-section “Share Option Scheme”. DE

2. 45,348,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the entire issued 2. #% % 45,348,000 % % 5 FA Billion Linkage
shares of which is held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal Limited$5 8 + Mz AR 22 TG A
share. ARESETEGE 2 REERF—F -
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EFERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

(@) Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

EENRDZER &

wRE)

RERaz Rt RIGER (7.2 iz (4)

@ RAEARFRDZ Bz (E)

3. 110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc., the entire issued
shares of which is ultimately held by Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee
of the C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which are the family
members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

4. 9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises Limited, the

entire issued shares of which is held by Mr. Ma Fung On.

5. 1,057,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the ultimate
shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated b)

corporation

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga Electronics

Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company:

Name of Director

Dr. Ng Chi Ho

Mr. Ma Fung On

Capacity

51

Interests of controlled
corporation

LB

Interests of controlled
corporation

T E B

Bret - (&)

3. # % 110,000,000 % % 15 F8 Superior View
InciFA - MEAREHEEITROBIER
C.H.R&{EFEZFEA ZFidelitycorp Limited
BREFRE  ZERAZXaARRASEL
ZHE -

4, 7% % 9,900,000 fi% % 15 i Global Class
Enterprises Limited¥54 * Mz ARl 2#E
BITRDAIRFEL R ERE -

5. #% % 1,057,800 & B& 5 F Quick Fit
Enterprises LtdF§E + ML ERZ AT
BIRIRER ©

AL RIFEBZ B < #E s

RARREEAWBAREEETFAR
NEFREE.008 T v EIEERELT
Rt -

Number of
Non-voting
deferred shares
BREREL
ROEE

(Note 1)

(Hi7Z1)

3,680,000
(Note 2)
(BF3E2)
240,000 6%
(Note 2)

(FF3E2)

Percentage of
issued shares
HE BT

Btk

92%

®



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated
corporation (Continued)

Notes:

1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to any distributions upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary shares
has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga Electronics Limited
are held as to 80% by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and 20% by
Broadway Business Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On hold
92% and 6% interests in each of Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and Broadway Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option Scheme”,
none of the Directors of the Company have any interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO as at 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in above section, at no time during the year was
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debenture
of, the Company or any body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group'’s business to which the Company, its parent company,
or its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company, his connected institutes was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

EENRDZER

wRE)
RAER a7 RIGER (7.2 iz (4)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISIONS

By-law of the Company, every director of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his office. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing business as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("“Listing Rules”)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, the following persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

wE B

Capacity

8%

Superior View Inc. Superior View Inc.  Beneficial owner

(Note 1) (K¥EET) EmEAA
Billion Linkage Limited Billion Linkage Beneficial owner
(Note 2) Limited (Fi5E2)  EamEAA
Notes:
1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately held by

Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of
which are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held by Dr. Ng Chi
Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such, Dr. Ng Chi Ho is deemed to
be interested in all the shares held by Billion Linkage Limited under the SFO.
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EEAR TEEMNEEBARXZMAERITR
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%R ARG E3365EE 2 BRMAmRE
THAL(LIARNEFREBTHAL)R
ARFZRA RIARBRAT  FAREESR
R EDIZX VRS2 35 BT AR A T
B2 ssA -

Number of Percentage of

shares issued shares

B BT

BEE Bott
(Note 1)
(K15E1)

110,000,000 39.69%

45,348,000 16.36%

Hrat -

1. Superior View Inc. 25 B ETRABEACH R
WRAEFE S5 A Z Fidelitycorp Limited &35 H + #%
ERAZEEABREEZETZRE -

2. Billion Linkage Limited 2 HEHITRAHRE B F
EEE s REEE—F  BRIEES KBAEK
fl - 2 8B L8 A% ABillion Linkage Limited
FTisE 250010 2 e o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors, there
is no person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at
31 March 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’'s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 15.2% of the Group's total revenue and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 53.9% of the Group's total
revenue. In addition, the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 19% of the Group’s purchases while the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 33% of the
Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2016, the Company was not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration were
pending or threatened or made against the Company so far the
Company is aware.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 27 to 41.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-appointment.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(IIESG'I)

The Company has a serious commitment to ESG matters. A report on
the environmental, social and governance commitment can be found
on pages 66 to 72.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

SUGA's commitment to excellence extends to the Group conducting
its business in a manner that respects the environment. The strive
for cleaner production has led SUGA to adopt energy conservation
practices that can reduce environmental risks and liabilities as well
as improve competitiveness. We also work to raise awareness of
and involvement in environmental protection among colleagues at
all levels and encourage them and their families to engage in green
activities.

To help the Group develop an all-round green culture, two wholly
owned major subsidiaries of the Group have integrated the ISO
9001, ISO 14001 and QC 080000 environmental management
systems and processes and provided colleagues with environmental
protection guidelines. Furthermore, the Group achieves Green
Product Management System (GPMS) and RoHS & WEEE Compliance
Certification.

In the future, SUGA will continue to fulfill its commitment to
environmental protection and also support sustainable development
at both local and global level.

The Group received the following environmental awards and
certificates:

Certification of Hong Kong Green Mark BEIQEE IRIRE

— Hong Kong Q-Mark Council

The 23rd Green Power Hike — The Corporation/

—BEEH %?ﬁ/%’

Fot=ZERENERETT

R RE

BENREENERRBENAERIEREN
LEF XL« MONERF 2 AEITEERE
EERME RS RO RBRBREEE - I
RAFEFN - RMIMBNHIEAZRRAEHRR
EBRRZERRIE  THBRERERAKR
N EEE o

AR AEEIEERSAECXL  AEBME
TERNEEWBATEAISO 9001 + 1SO 14001

X QC 080000IRFEEEHIE MmiE @ MAE=E
IREIREREIES] o AN - AEEEELE

EREEERZGPM)UANEENMERFBIIES
(RoOHS) B R B ML EE T -2 T8 S (WEEE) S 18 B & ©

KR EEBRERERIBN &S
FREREASIFAFERRE -

© IS

$% .HX L/\TI&{%ngE&u oRE -

FIALE

Organization Cup — Outstanding Green Award — IrikErt B E g R
— Green Power —GRHgER-—REE
HSBC Living Business Award 2015 — Green ELERENEN 12015

Achievement — Merit Award
— The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

—fRERFE—BEE
— BB FEZIRITHR AN A]

‘tc‘zms

HSBC LIVING BUSINESS

Green Achievement—Merit Award
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Hang Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Award B4 523k = BIR{R A 1E 0
— Green Medal — AR IRE
— Federation of Hong Kong Industries — BT RED G 1} 1 4 HANG SENG
. 35 B = A9 B AR A 5
Pan Peari River Delta Environmental Awards
45 (7 e T 4
ek AR, sesmes
—hong Rong Froaguctivity Lounc B AE £/ i, Green Management Network
Quality Management System Certificate BERGREES
SO 9001:2008 |SO 9001 : 2008
— SGS United Kingdom Ltd —SGS United Kingdom Ltd
Accreditation of ISO 14001: 2004 ISO 14001 : 20042 :&

— China Quality Certification Centre

Environmental Management System Certificate
ISO 14001:2004

— Beijing Head International Certification Co., Ltd.

Accreditation of QC 080000
— International
Electrotechnical
Commission on Quality

Certification of Go Green Organization
— Co-organized by: Environmental Campaign
Committee and Environmental Protection
Department

(@ hEREINEPL

?v‘_!,:m CHINA QUALITY CERTIFICATION CENTRE

— i BB & GRS A

RIEEREARIES
ISO 14001 : 2004
— LR B G RAE A R N A

PEREAESC

CHINA QUALITY CERTIFICATION CENTRE

]

QC 080000 IECQ HSPM!

wemmEE e
— AW EREDEEY QD g FePD ro

QC 0800003 &
— International
Electrotechnical
Commission on Quality

RIRFIREE
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Furthermore, the Group participated in the following events for  |tt%
environmental protection:

SUGA was awarded the Corporation/Organisation Cup —
Outstanding Green Award recognizing its staff’s enthusiastic
participation in the 23rd Green Power Hike in January 2016.
BERZZE—ARF-ANE-TZEZCNERETRETIERE
HEEgE - sER - RIBETNHEBIERHE -

e s . ;;.'-.','.--
AL ELE ET

International Coastal Cleanup Hong Kong

SR e e |
Our volunteers actively took part in International Coastal Cleanup
Hong Kong 2015.
BPIHE TERRASBEREF5RES2015 °

N AEBSEUTRFREED

Our colleagues and their families joined the Walk for Nature
organized by WWF at Hong Kong's iconic Mai Po Nature Reserve in
November 2015.
HMOBEERERAR-_Z-HF+ - AZ2EERERELSGNE
BRI B A RERBERNFEREAR

Our volunteers actively took part in the Green Council’s Hong Kong
Green Day on 5 June 2015.
BMWBEIEES2ERREEER S AF A ABRNNES
#el -
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures to ensure its operations comply
with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board of Directors is
responsible for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices making
sure they agree with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, and
that those policies and practices are regularly reviewed for adequacy.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
as necessary to the attention of relevant employees and operating
units.

As far as it is aware, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations of PRC and Hong Kong that have a significant impact
on its business and operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

—  TALENT TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to helping all employees develop
professionally and grow as individuals, thus it considers crucial
that training and development opportunities be continuously
provided to its staff. Many training courses and program, on-
the-job and otherwise, are provided to employees to help them
improve their skills and professionalism. Structured training
programs including seminars are offered to staff with the
objectives of grooming and unleashing their full potential,
and supporting organizational development and facilitating
team synergies. During the year, we provided in all 57,990
hours of training to our employees. We also offer scholarships
to employees with the hope of encouraging them to equip
themselves with the skills and knowledge required to pursue
career opportunities within the Group.

-  GROWING TOGETHER WITH CUSTOMERS
Customers’ needs are our priority. Hence, we attach great
importance to communicating effectively with our customers
and understanding their requirements. SUGA is devoted to
keeping abreast of customers’ needs and striving to seize more
business opportunities by developing more flexible electronic
solutions that can bring value to customers.
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—  SUPPLY CHAIN SUSTAINABILITY

We adhere to the “Supply Chain Sustainability” principle in
conducting our business and adopt open, fair and transparent
criteria in selecting suppliers and service providers. We have
in place a supplier evaluation system that assesses vendors’
price, quality, cost, delivery and after-sales service. The Group
continuously monitors the quality of its suppliers and conducts
regular reviews of all suppliers as well as examines different
suppliers to ensure the material supplies and services it receives
are of consistent quality.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As an industry leader, SUGA is deeply committed to honoring its
corporate social responsibility for the benefit of the society. To give
back to the community in which we are deeply rooted, we participate
in a variety of charitable events every year. This participation is inspired
by our belief that every member of the society should be given equal
opportunity to live with dignity, to pursue their dreams and realize
their full potential. Hence, we focus our CSR efforts on helping the
disadvantaged.

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$692,000 to
charitable and community causes. The Group received the following
awards and recognitions and participated in the events:

Organizer/Beneficiary

— RS AEFEM

BB HERARENE | 2 RAULE
X WRNEZHERLREHERS
EERRAR - AT RSBERENHEL -
BPRL T —EHERFGESE -
HEENER H8 UK XTEE
BRY - AEESEEREHERNE
B UEHEAMARERRRETR
HER  MERIBEHERRAKEE
SHRBGHE —EEE -

TEMEEE

ERITEREE  EERNETHELELER
T WERHE - SEERMERNMLRER - 3,
PMEF2RERBRERZEE - RAIRE HEL
B FREANVESEER  AGHEEEE
S2ERANBREHLEIOKS - HIESEL
R M2 BEIHES - Fit - BB EHL
SEETIEEH MRS HLES o

£ RNEEIBH 692,000/ T EBZEE Mt
[B5EE) o REBEBLNTEE L ZE  WRH
ZIEES) ¢

Event/Award/Recognition

THEN ZRA SEE),#RE R
Community
e

Wofoo Social Enterprises
MELEhR /K EEHEM2016
The Community Chest
N 7 H2015/2016

Agency for Volunteer Service

EGTIFRER 1I&HIT5E2015

Federation of Hong Kong Industries
AEAILELE

Blood Donation Day

BmA

Hong Kong Water Race 2016

Love Teeth Day 2015/2016

Charity Walk and Run for Volunteering 2015
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Organizer/Beneficiary

EPWENFHmA

Event/Award/Recognition

EE),HRIE SRR

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

EELEREHE
Hong Kong Productivity Council
BEEEENER

Agency for Volunteer Service

B TIFRER

Promoting Happiness Index Foundation

BBRTREERES

Scholarship
RET

Vocational Training Council

BEVIRB
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BBRNKE

United College, the Chinese University
of Hong Kong
EEPXREHEER

Sponsorship

=)

World Vision Hong Kong
HAMTAEHE

Vocational Training Council

BEIIRE

The Hong Kong Management Association

ERERHEGE

Yan Oi Tong Limited

CEE

Caring Company 5 years

BESFRA B ARRAIE IR

Awarded the "Corporate Citizenship Logo” under the Enterprise Category
at the 6th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Awards
RENEBFBRLGEARBLIELERARE PR ARRZFR]

AVS Walk & Run for Volunteering 2015
AVSETTE [ & 12015

Happy Company 2016
Fi/D LEfEI2016

Outstanding Industrial Attachment Scholarships 2015
BAELEEERES2015

Suga International Holdings Limited Scholarship (for Faculty of
Engineering)
EERREREGRAREER (TIRER)

Suga International Holdings Limited Scholarship

EEERREERARESS

Child Sponsorship
BERE

VTC Design Education Fund 2015
BB AE £ 92015

48th Distinguished Salesperson Award Presentation Ceremony

FABfERA I HESE B 82

Yan Oi Tong Annual Charity Ball

CEERAFREERS
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Organizer/Beneficiary Event/Award/Recognition

EWENFHA SEE), MR R iR

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Foundation
BAETKRE EEBEIREES

Outward Bound Hong Kong BOCHK Outward Bound Corporate Challenge 2015
EBINRINRER HNE o EHEE2015

Design for Change Hong Kong Donation of 4t DFC School Challenge 2015
EERIETE FEMERIEITBEE2015485K

HKEIA HKEIA Education Fund

BEEETERS ERETENEGHEES

Our colleagues participated in the BOCHK Outward Bound Corporate
Challenge in December 2015.
BMORAENR_Z-RF+-H2HEINE - FIHE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 75 to 187, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com




SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR R

_E
pwc

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AERERRE

As at 31 March 2016 A=Z—X<F=F=+—H

31 March 31 March
2016 PAONIS)
—E—XE —T—AHF
EV eSS —F=1+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NMEE 6 263,236 257,317
Investment property KEYE 8 10,000 10,100
Land use rights + {5 PR #E 7 53,291 55,528
Intangible assets M EE 9 7.251 12,372
Goodwill [EES 10 3,949 3,949
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEEREZIRE 13 = -
Interests in associates S YN T 12 3,876 -
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HE S EE 15 16,678 13,358
Bond investment BEEEE 16 7,711 7,711
Deferred income tax assets EEFTISTHREE 23 323 762
Other non-current receivables HibIEm B FEUGRIE 18 4,118 1,658
370,433 362,755
Current assets MENEE
Inventories w5 17 167,361 192,818
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 7k N E b e W ik TE 18 200,773 198,857
Loan receivable B EW A 18 12,960 13,500
Tax recoverable A] U [a] Fi T8 3,859 4,105
Amount due from a joint venture e —FE&ERERIE 13 404 404
Amount due from an associate JE Uy — R & A B FB 12(b) 431 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBESZEEY 20 225,027 176,989
610,815 586,673
Total assets EELE 981,248 949,428
LIABILITIES a&
Non-current liabilities ERBERs
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 10,932 12,405
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFSEHRAE 23 1,443 2,105
12,375 14,510
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HERERRE

As at 31 March 2016 A=Z—X<F=B=+—H

—EB—RE

=E==0
HK$'000
FET

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

31 March 31 March
2016 2015
—T—RF
=A=+—H
HK$'000
T

Current liabilities REBEaE

Trade and other payables FER B 5 AR5 Ho b FE < 5B 21 185,468 187,768

Income tax payable FER FTIS TR 12,931 9,370

Bank borrowings HwITEE 22 101,197 88,383

Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 19 1,946 4,181
301,542 289,702

Total liabilities =NErCEE 313,917 304,212

EQUITY s

Equity attributable to the owners BENARBEE A ER

of the Company

Share capital R& 2 24 27,712 27,371

Other reserves E b 26 113,246 131,091

Retained earnings REZEF 26 526,792 488,278
667,750 646,740

Non-controlling interests FEPE R A (419) (1,524)

Total equity M AATE 667,331 645,216

Total equity and liabilities RN BEERE 981,248 949,428

The notes on pages 82 to 187 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FE82E187TH ZMERFAMBEIHER—D -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 187 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2016 and were signed

FISEISTENRENBEHRERERZE—RF
NAZTt=REEseE YR TIESENR

on its behalf by: REE
Ng Chi Ho Ma Fung On
RER BEZR
Director Director
£ EF
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EEEREEERAA

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ReliR®

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=—Z—~"E=A=1+—RHI&EE

2015/165F 3R

2016 2015
—T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000

T T
Revenue WS 27 1,368,100 1,341,924
Cost of sales SHEE AR 30 (1,167,281) (1,161,859)
Gross profit EF 200,819 180,065
Other income E A A 28 2,183 647
Other gains, net Hib iz - F5E 29 16,662 123,316
Distribution and selling expenses SDIERHEER 30 (28,367) (25,986)
General and administrative expenses —/ RITIREIEE A 30 (102,643) (99,898)
Operating profit B A 88,654 178,144
Finance income & WA 31 3,561 1,572
Finance costs RUE R AN 317 (2,996) (3,364)
Finance income/(costs) — net AU (B AR) — 558 31 565 (1,792)
Share of losses of associates N | = 12 (1,312) (640)
Profit before income tax KRBTSR BT i A 87,907 175,712
Income tax expense FriSfif < 32 (8,596) (5,698)
Profit for the year FREA 79,311 170,014
Profit attributable to: BN T ALREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ Y =N 80,038 170,406
Non-controlling interests IR HIMEAE R (727) (392)

79,311 170,014
Earnings per share for profit FARRREEA

attributable to the owners of FE(E Y% R B =R B T
the Company during the year

— Basic (HK cents) —EARCEW) 33 28.94 62.55
— Diluted (HK cents) —#EOB) 33 28.89 62.41

The notes on pages 82 to 187 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FRE18TA ZWE R A M ERER —807 °
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RE2mBAR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=-Z—~"E=A=1+—RAI&E

2016 2015
—E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Profit for the year FEREA 79,311 170,014

Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Htt2mE (F8) WA -

ltem that will not be reclassified BB ressmoBzEansEE
subsequently to profit or loss:

Fair value gain on land and buildings EREREMER T RIEFT Y
upon transfer to investment property N EKE = 6.790
ltems that may be reclassified to AlptEM O EEER AR ¢

profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on WE N B AR FrEEEH =58

translation of foreign subsidiaries (18,216) (2,350)
Release of exchange reserve upon REUE R — R B A 5 FF AR PR EE H

deregistration of a subsidiary & (11,343) -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHHERBEE AT ERES

financial assets 3,320 1,936
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FRNEMEE(ER), WA -

for the year, net of tax HERTiE (26,239) 6,376
Total comprehensive income FREZEBANEZE

for the year 53,072 176,390
Profit attributable to: PR
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ Y =N 53,799 176,782
Non-controlling interests FEFEFI VA = (727) (392)

53,072 176,390

The notes on pages 82 to 187 are an integral part of these £82%F 1878 2 HitI AGSMEHREk—IS °
consolidated financial statements.
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FEERERERAT 2015/165 R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeRRBER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=—Z—~"E=A=1+—RHI&EE

Attributable to the owners of the Company
LSS ZUN,

Share

capital
A
HK$'000

Other
reserves
Hitts
HK$'000

AL

Retained
earnings
REER
HK$'000

TAT

Non-
controlling
interests
FETIR
HK$'000

Total
g
HK$'000
7

Balance at 1 April 2014 RIE-MENA-AEs 27,229 120,148 372,284 (1,132) 518,529
Profit/loss) for the year FREH/(BB) - - 170,406 (392) 170,014
Exchange difference arising BEBIHBARMES

on translation of foreign subsidiaries ERER - (2,350) - - (2,350)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ﬂﬁﬁ’%,ﬂmﬁﬁ

finandial assets ZATENE - 1,936 - - 1,936
Fair value gain on land and buildings ;@; ZRENERHRET

upon transfer to investment property 2 AT{EME - 6,790 - - 6,790
Total comprehensive income 2HEWALE - 6,376 170,406 (392) 176,390
Transactions with owners: BREAZENRS
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE -
Proceeds from shares issued RTPERERD B0

upon exercise of options JHETE 142 1,837 - - 1,979
Options lapsed eSed i ] - (221) 221 - -
Value of employee services BEREZEE - 2,951 - - 2,951
Dividends paid ERRRE - - (54,633) - (54,633)
Balance at 31 March 2015 WZE-HE=R=+-H

ikt 27371 131,091 488,278 (1,524) 645,216

Profit/(loss) for the year EREFl/ (B8) - - 80,038 (127) 79,311
Exchange difference arising BERINHERRMEE

on translation of foreign subsidiaries EAEE - (18,216) - - (18,216)
Release of exchange reserve upon FHX}%?WJ NG

deregistration of a subsidiary & BHEN BE - (11,343) - - (11,343)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At ER B EE

financial assets ZRTEWS - 3,320 - - 3,320
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2T (&) /W A28 - (26,239) 80,038 (727) 53,072
Transactions with owners: BEEAZENLS
Employee share option scheme: EEBERIEASE
Proceeds from shares issued TR ERERD 21RG

upon exercise of options ZEFE 3 6,319 - - 6,660
Value of employee services €8 H&%Z{f@ - 4,134 - - 4,134
Options lapsed K ke - (37) 37 - -
Contribution from minority shareholders > &R & & - - - 960 960
Change in ownership interests TERR A EN B AR

in subsidiaries without BEEERZS

change of control - (2,022) - 872 (1,150)
Dividends paid BHRRE - - (41,561) - (41,561)
Balance at 31 March 2016 R-E-"E=R=+-H

k373 21,112 113,246 526,792 (419) 667,331
The notes on pages 82 to 187 are an integral part of these F82F187B Z Mzt AtrA M EHER—3H °

consolidated financial statements.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Felans

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=-Z—~"E=A=1+—RAI&E

2016 2015
—E—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Cash flows from operating REEBZRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEEREL RS 38 139,049 9,968
Interest paid ERFE (3,305) (3,335)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEANEH (4,457) (11,295)
Mainland China corporate income BB EMEH
tax paid (255) (714)
Net cash generated from/(used in) rang e s (R 2
operating activities REFHE 131,032 (5,376)
Cash flows from investing BRETHRERE
activities
Additions of property, REWE - WE REE
plant and equipment (43,506) (100,852)
Additions of investment property REREWE (300) -
Deposits paid for property, mE - WEEREZ
plant and equipment Bf&ES (4,118) (1,658)
Proceeds from disposals of property, H&EME - HE &
plant and equipment [ FT1S50IR 38 136 1,089
Retirement of financial assets WEEATERABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss S EE = 1,279
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEHEENKEE
financial asset - (3,875)
Increase in interests in associates B R B2 S IE N (5,188) (423)
Interest received BHE 3,561 1,572
Payment for product XA EE BB AR
development cost (589) (763)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H &M B Q72 Fri80E 29(a) - 156,455
Net cash (used in)/generated from "EES(FA) ELr
investing activities W HE (50,004) 52,824

®



EEEREEERAA

2015/165F 3R

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FEERRRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=—Z—~"E=A=1+—RHI&EE

Cash flows from RETEFERERE

financing activities

2016

HK$'000
FTHET

2015
—h%F

HK$'000
TAET

Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEFTSHRIA 247,000 150,000
Repayment of bank borrowings 1g@fﬁ1ﬂﬁ& (235,659) (134,741)
Proceeds from shares issued BITIR D 2 P15 508 6,660 1,979
Consideration paid to non-controlling x4 F3E1RHIERERS

interests RIE (1,150) -
Dividends paid ERERE (41,561) (54,633)
Net cash used in RIEERE TR 2 IREFEE

financing activities (24,710) (37,395)
Net increase in cash and cash Re kR EEBYILINFE

equivalents 56,318 10,053
Effect of changes [ERFEHTE

in foreign exchange rates (8,280) (2,468)
Cash and cash equivalents, ReRkB2EED -

beginning of year F4) 176,989 169,404
Cash and cash equivalents, RekReEEY -

end of year FIKR 225,027 176,989

The notes on pages 82 to 187 are an integral part of these F82F187B ZiiTAirEMEHE 2 -

consolidated financial statements.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on
28 September 2001. The Company’s shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
sales of electronic products, moulds and plastic products. The
Group has operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macao.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These financial statements are presented in HK dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion at fair value of available-for-sale financial assets,
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, and investment property which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

EEEREEERAR(TARR]) ME
MEBAR(GHE AKE DR _FT—F
NAZ+TN\BEBEREEMALSER
RBRRA - ARBBRNBE_FTZT_F
NATNBEZTEMARZABR AT
([B2FR ) E7 -

RRRRREERRAT o XA REM
BRA(REIAKE D EIENEETE
o RANRZEBERMELMAE - RE
RHEXR  AKEXBETEMRE
7B~ PEIRIRPT -

AR\ 2 7 9 = B A 7 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

BRARBERIN  ZERBHRRAETR
B2 -

EESTTBRBE

AN EGEEMBEHRRARAEEES
BERHINMT - RRAEREIN - 1FH
BERRE2HRFEDEREMR -

2.1 RBEEE
AEENGEAUBBRDBRERE
A E B GRS ER ([ F B
BMEER DRE - Ik EEA0T®
BRIEBEL KA SR ERE - I
FEREATE AT HEHBEE
ERBRATERABRHBEE
REBaE(aETESRIAR
BATEAREZREYER TIAE
T e

RENEEEVBHREEARR
MBmRRBERE TS A
it BEEERNERAKEEHBR
R IREVEH HIE - 0 lm B # T k
BREMEE - BFEEPBTERER
BEANRRLMEEHE - SRE
PBTEES
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EEEREEERAA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M5 =M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(@

The following amendments to existing standards are
mandatory for the accounting year beginning on
or after 1 April 2015 and have been adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 19 (amendment)
BB ERIFE195E(BETA)
HKFRSs (amendment)

BB BWEER(EFTAR)
HKFRSs (amendment)

BB BWEER(EFTAR)

The adoption of above amendments to standards
has had no material effect on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) became effective during the
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

BB RELER

2015/165F 3R

2

BEEESTHERE )

2.1 REEEE)

(a)

BEENZUTEINR-F
—HFEMA—-H®kz&FAR
S FERHERL DR
RAEZEHEEMBERREE
BRAR o

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribution
FERNETE  BEHK
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 Cycle
BEMBREEA T - —FRBAFESE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2013 Cycle
| —T—=FBH FEBCE

RN bt B 2 S 5T i
REMBRRABEAE -

AN - FE B RN EEG (F
622% ) FE9H IR B REAT
ZHRERAFERER - B
It GRAEFBHRERETE
Br2®mMEEEANGE -
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEESTHBEEEms
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)

(0 The following new standards, amendments to (0 THEER| - EA BT R
standards and interpretation have been issued but ZREDHEM  BEREE=ZZ
are not effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 —RNE=ZA=1+—HBILFE
and have not been early adopted by the Group: mAREM - BARSEI IR

SR

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
REULT Bk 2 2B h
WEEHBEN
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BEM IS RELER|FER T H —T-N\F¥—HF—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an  To be determined
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
HEMBRELEAFI0R LT REFEABENSEREZHL 5
BEERE28R(EFTAR) BELEITE
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the 1 January 2016
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Consolidation Exception
BEMBHREERE 105 - F KREER : BAKRAS ARNAISMER —E-RE—-HA—H
BB RELERF 125 NE
BEETAERIFE 285 (18R] AN)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in 1 January 2016
Joint Operations
%ﬁgﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ% 15% WIENA EXBER 5t RIE —T-R¥—-A—H
Z5]
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
HEMIBREERF 1458 EERIEARA —T-R¥—A—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
BRI IRELERIZE 155 REEREFELHIZWA —E-\F—HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BRI EERIE 1657 HE —E-NF—A—H
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
FEGEREIRETA) BEIHE —T-R¥—A—H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation
HERERB1RENERS TEERBHE R TEZES —T-R¥-A—H
STHERIZE 385K (1ER] )
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
(Amendments)
EEGAERE 16 LNETEE BE  £EMEY —E-RE—-HA—H
FPERIE41R (BRI A)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
Statements
BREGTERIZE275(BRIA) RBUMBHRERAZEDE —E—R¥—-HA—H
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
FEBGEIRE B FE_T-NFRPrFERE TR "F-A—H
Management is in the process of making an EIEER P (L% & e Hn] fE
assessment of the likely impact of these changes 2. N REEE T e @B AE
but is not yet in a position to state whether any ENEZeABER N HEMER
substantial changes to the Group’s significant KPR F (I ENEE o

accounting policies and/or the presentation of its
financial statements will result.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M5 =M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquire that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognized amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

2015/165F 3R

2

BEEESTHERE )

2.2 #E

(a)

=

B& 2 &l
MEBAREAREREAE
HiEzER(BREEHE
B) EAEEARHEZRZR
HERAScAE@E - B
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BHZER - HEAREE
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ARR o B R R R HI R
k2 BEFIEEHAR -
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R Z AR E LR
X6 O Al R 2 TR E
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o THTFHREA-BBR
RiZL Pl EIEE RN FEE
E - ARAFERRRERE
B S EE R B A E
RFEENERSRLLOIM
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net asset acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 358 RO EE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between the fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2015/165F 3R

2 EEESHBEEEms

2.2 GmEEEE)

(a) HIBLA %)

HIFEGIMERRETIRS
i AN BK 25 12 ) (B £
BANEEREBEANG i
TR 5) AR AR °
P HERAEN R FER
1 B8 e 1k P U R B /B8 2 )
BERMENZRCEAE
& o MIEEFIER R HE
BB E TSR -

EASE B AEGIE
EEBNEMREEDNK
ERGIRERENAEED
FE  FEENEPHERR
FHER - NP ER/IIREE
mARBE AR S 068
HE FRBZERR A&
EERIMBEE - 1 2
Az ERAEHEMEE KA
REER AR BB AR
BEERLEHRHEEENER
B EBREZAERME
EWAFERHNBRET D

BEEE -

(b) BURIEHE

R R R 2R ERKAH
BRRESIER - KABIERE
MEXRBRA - HERF
MEREHARBIZE W R E
YA B AR

A0 B R 4B B IR A S H A B
BRAAMEEWALRE X
MBI B HRR R E R
EEEBAR G M B RER P
REQRFEE(BREEE)
BRREE - Bl BASRHE
DR BELERER o

®



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the
group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. The
amounts reported by associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interests in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(d) Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group’s investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group's share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint venture is eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in a joint venture. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

2.3 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors collectively who make
strategic decisions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

(iiiy  all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation,or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 358 RO EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEESHBEEEms
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2.5 ¥ BERRE

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases
and all other property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance leases commence
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
of other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance leases 38 to 48 years

Buildings 35-48 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use. This includes direct costs of construction as well
as interest expense capitalised during the period of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
will cease and the construction in progress is transferred
to appropriate categories within property, plant and
equipment when the construction activities necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Up to the date when an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property carried at fair value,
the Group depreciates the property and recognizes any
impairment losses that have occurred. Any difference at
that date between the carrying amount of the property
and its fair value in the revaluation is included in
revaluation reserve.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that
are being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Land held under operating leases
are accounted for as investment properties when the
rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted
for as if they were finance leases. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part of a valuation gain
or loss in ‘other gains — net’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 LAND USE RIGHTS
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Land use rights are
amortised using the straight-line method over the period
of the land use rights.

2.8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a)

(b)

Customer relationship

Contractual customer relationship acquired in
a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relationship has a finite useful life and
is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship of five years.

Product development

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique products controlled by the Group are
recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the
software product so that it will be available for
use;

o Management intends to complete the product
and use or sell it;

o There is an ability to use or sell the product;

o It can be demonstrated how the product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

. Adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the product are available; and

o The expenditure attributable to the product
during its development can be reliably
measured.

2

BEEESTHERE )

2.7 TihfEARE

T AR AR = Rt #E I
RMEEIESIER - T e AERE R

SRR L AR HA B

28 EBFEEE
(a) EFEE

REBEHPUBZEOE
FRETIRWKE R BRAF
EER - BNEFBERER
[E] 7 7 i A 4 ) e AR 1% A
AR RETEESH D BR - HEIHTD
REPHERZENEHASF
RAEEMREE -

(b) EmfiZ

B 4 S AT AR Fr AR B B A X
REERERR/FAX o &Rt
R ORI 7 62 [ P 4% Il 69 7T 3B
RIBRE m i B R EA A
BERATETT & AT R 1 B B
RNENEE

o EREFEEQERM L
T - LATEER

o EEEHTKEMILE
Rk EEm

B S5 38 E i A0 fr] 2E
A R] BE MY R 2K 48 R

o  EABERAOEIM - P
R E M E IR TE MK 53 &
ERARHEER: &

. ESBEMMEEHH
SRR M -

(o5)

()



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Product development (Continued)
Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as
part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

Development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which
does not exceed three years.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified
net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life,
or intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amotisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

()  Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables, amount due from an associate
and a joint venture, bond investment and
cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.13 and 2.14).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” category are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the
group'’s right to receive payments is established.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A %5 80 R P

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
recognised only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
"loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the separate consolidated income
statement.

2.12 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.15SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.17 BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEEESTHERE )

2.18 BORROWING COSTS 2. 18 FEE AR

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and its associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution pension schemes for its employees.
The pension plans are funded by payments
from employees and by the Group. The Group's
contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
expensed as incurred. The assets are held separately
from those of the Group and managed by related
independent professional fund managers.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant municipal and provincial governments based
on specified percentages of the relevant employees’
monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions to
these plans are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

i) including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

i) excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

i) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investments in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements
Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Other benefits
Other directors’ and employees’ obligations
are recorded as a liability and charged to the
consolidated income statement when the Group
is contractually obliged or when there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations is small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.23 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
electronic, moulds and plastic products in the
wholesale market. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the products,
the amount of sales can be reliably measured and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

(c) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.24 OPERATING LEASES

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), including upfront payment made for leasehold
land and land use rights, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.25 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities
for financial guarantee at inception, but performs a
liability adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing
its net liability regarding the financial guarantee with the
amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
would result in a present legal or constructive obligation.
If the liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

2.27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value on the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedged instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had not designated any
derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in fair values
of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
being included in the consolidated income statement as
“other gains, net”.

2.28 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group'’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders in case of final dividend and the
Company’s directors in case of interim dividend.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk,credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group'’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars (“US$") and
Renminbi (“"RMB"). Foreign currency risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not an entity’s functional currency. As Hong
Kong dollars are pegged against United States
dollars, management considers that the Group
is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to RMB. Management monitors foreign
currency exchange exposure and will take measures
to minimise the currency translation risk. As at 31
March 2016, apart from certain non-deliverable
forward foreign exchange contracts entered into
with commercial banks which were stated at
fair value, the Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk.
The exchange rate of RMB to foreign currencies and
the remittance of RMB funds out of Mainland China
are subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
Chinese Government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBERERE®
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BIEBEE)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SMEREFEE)
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, if both Hong Kong RZE—ARER_ZT—HF
dollars and United States dollars had strengthened/ —A=+—8  WHxTkE
weakened by 5% against RMB with all other THARBEHAE LA
variables held constant, the post-tax profit for 5% @ MATEEMEAERTE
each year would have changed mainly as a result ZFEEZERHREMAEes
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation s TERBELAEEA
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in EEQRINEEE 2 EES
foreign currencies of the relevant group companies, EMBEELELEE W
as follows: IR

2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—RHF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET

Post-tax profit (decrease)increase B Fi1& % CRtd>) /180

— Strengthen 5% —F{E5% (7,988) (7,419
- Weakened 5% —B71E5% 7,988 7,419
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (ii) i@.—%/m 2R 2 FEFIFE
The Group's income and operating cash flows are ZK%ZH&U\&W%EEiM
substantially independent of changes in market ERBETZTISH EEE)
interest rates as the Group has no significant T2 REAKREREKRK
interest-bearing assets except for the loan receivable BEUEBEeRREEED
and cash and cash equivalents, details of which are Gy REBWES AT EE
disclosed in Notes 18 and 20 respectively. E - BEFEDRIRKTE18
K 203555 o
The Group's interest rate risk primarily relates to its NEE 2 HE R B EER
bank borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable TEERHE - ZEEESK
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest SEmEReREMNER
rate risk. The Group currently does not hedge its % ZK%lfiﬁqIﬁﬂiﬁFﬁ
interest rate risk. However, management monitors f'JTﬂ[ﬂﬁ wim - BRER
the related interest rate risk exposure closely and %%ﬁ@ﬁ ?‘JTH 2N
will consider hedging significant interest rate risk EREREREARAFER
exposure should the need arise. The interest rates % o {8 B & X8 FUERR
and terms of repayment of borrowings are disclosed W.:EEZZT)EE% °
in Note 22.

®



EEEREEERAA

2015/165F 3R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 358 RO EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group has no fixed interest rate borrowings.
Therefore it does not have any fair value interest
rate risk.

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, if the interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower than the prevailing interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$468,000 (2015: HK$421,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
Group’s financial assets are trade and other
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, bond
investment, amount due from a joint venture and an
associate and cash at banks. The amounts of those
assets stated in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is concentrated on a
number of major and long established customers.
Trade receivables from the top five customers
amounted to approximately 31% (2015: 48%)
of the Group's total trade receivables. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with appropriate credit histories
and to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any individual customer. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group’s past experience
in collection of trade receivables falls within the
recorded allowances. In order to minimise credit risk
to the Group, the Group has certain non-recourse
factoring arrangements with banks to cover the
credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

The credit risk on bond investment and cash at
banks are limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. Transactions
in relation to available-for-sale financial assets
and derivative financial instruments, if any, are
only carried out with financial institutions of high
reputation. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any one financial
institution.

For loans and receivables, amounts due from a
joint venture and an associate, the Group regularly
monitors the financial positions of these companies/
counterparties to assess their recoverability.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
manages its liquidity risk by controlling the level
of inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working capital
requirements and keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s bank facilities and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative
financial liabilities are included in the analysis if
their contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 BEEREEe

3.1 BiEREZEE)
(iv) REELEE &)

Between Between

On Less than 1and 2 and Over

demand

1 year AETH 5 years 5 years Total

BEX OR-F -ZWF WELF BBIF Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

THET THER TER TEx TER TER
31 March 2016 ZE-RE
=R=t-H
Trade payables ERE SRR - 149,764 - - - 149,764
Other payablesand ~ H b ERZIE N - 35,704 - - - 35,704
accruals [EETE R
Borrowings B8 95,000 6,430 4,440 6,717 - 112,587
Net settled derivative jR4EEfT4 - 1,946 - - - 1,946
financial instruments & @ T A
95,000 193,844 4,440 6,717 - 300,001

Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —ZEME MEAF BBAF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL  TET AT TET TAER
31 March 2015 —E—RF
=A=+—H
Trade payables JERTE 5 8R 5K 148,930 - - - 148,930
Other payables and ~ EfthfEff5kEK 38,838 - - - 38,838
accruals FEETER
Borrowings gE 90,412 2,997 9,727 - 103,136
Net settled SFEENTE 4,181 - - - 4,181
derivative financial &g T A
instruments
282,361 2,997 9,727 - 295,085
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis
of the loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements. The amounts included interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As
a result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band
in the maturity analysis contained above.

Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the Directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretions to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that
such loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings subject to a
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled
repayments:

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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(0]}
demand

RERE
HK$'000
TR

Less than
1 year
—£R
HK$'000
AT

B RR

A gt
a

S IR ()

3.1 BiERREZEE)
(iv) mEELEEE)

Between
1and

2 years
—ZMEF
HK$'000
THT

MERF

TREFIHEREREE K
REERITERRIBE K %
P2 1 0 B R R
ZEHELN EREEE
RERGHOMERTFREZFE
K- Bt WEEBERN
LR E P REK]
R SETRE DR

ARAKEZMBERR - E

ERB/BITHITEBRISHE
£ SR BB I8 R E A BE M A
R-BEREXFEFHR
BB KW AT R] TR E S

38 -

WAL - EERBERE
EEBXWRTENR  RIE
EEER -

Between
2 and
5 years

Over

5 years
REFENE
HK$'000
FEx

Total
At
HK$'000
THIT

HK$'000
Fb7L

31 March 2016 —E—RE

=A=1+-H - 37,042 37,043 23,727 = 97,812
31 March 2015 —E-hF

=A=1+—H - - - - - -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

3

ISR e )

3.2 EXEERE
AEEERERAZ BBERREARE
BAEHIFELE - LM ARIRRER
(O] ¥ Ko EL At M s 8 A A 2R 2 -
AR MRS RIFE A4S - AREE
ARPRA o

SERNAREANER  AKEK
ERBABRRIRMNZRE R - %
THBRNIBEEE - UWHERE
& o

AEBZEEABILRERER -
R EERBERGAREERR
RPN E

2016
—EB—RE

2015
—ET—RF
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
FiEx

Total bank borrowings RITEERE 112,129 100,788
Total equity AR Ea 667,331 645,216
Gearing ratio BEBELE 16.8% 15.6%

3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION
The table below analyses the Group'’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value as at 31 March 2016 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within
a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

See Note 8 for disclosures of the investment property that
is measured at fair value.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March

3.3

IR EE )

DEEGETE)
TREIAEBER=_ZE—RNFRZ
T-—FF=F=1+—BRQAFEH

2016 and 2015: ECZVBEEREBRE:
2016 —EB—RE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— -t {1} E=4 wEt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET THET
Assets: BE
Available-for-sale financial asset AJftHE & E - - 16,678 16,678
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments T4 &R T A - 1,946 - 1,946
2015 it
Level 1 Total
F—R B FE=MR 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FETT
Assets: EE:
Available-for-sale financial asset a] it & B 75& & - - 13,358 13,358
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments B 4t H €8 54 & - 4,181 - 4,181
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during REAR > F— _R=HzETE

the year.

ESOEF
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIKEREEs)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued) 3.3 /A%Ef#ﬂf%
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRBLRE=HRITEREE—
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015: /\E&_E i_ﬂ Eg=
IEE &8 :
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THTT
At 1 April A —H 13,358 7,547
Addltlon //J\E - 3,875
Fair value gain A ERE 3,320 1,936
At 31 March N=A=+—H 16,678 13,358

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The Group does not have level 1 financial
instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to assess the fair value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2. The Group’s derivative financial instruments
are level 2 financial instruments and their fair values are
determined with reference to quotations provided by
various banks. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets as at 31
March 2016 above are level 3 financial assets and their
fair values are determined based on the net asset values
of the funds calculated by the fund administrators with
reference to the quoted prices in active markets of the
underlying investments of the funds.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(A) INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(B)

(@]

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWNS OF INVENTORIES
TO NET REALISABLE VALUE

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs of inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. These estimates are
based on the correct market condition and the historical
experience of selling prices of similar nature. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

ESTIMATED PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

OF TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables and
other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. For
trade receivables, the assessment is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market condition,
and requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the year in
which such estimate has been changed. For loan and
other receivables, the provision was made by reference to
the difference between the carrying amount of the other
receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(D) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — SHARE-BASED

(E)

(F)

PAYMENTS

The determination of the fair value of the share options
granted requires estimates in determining, among others,
the expected volatility of the share price, the expected
dividend yield, the risk-free interest rate for the life of
the option, and the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable as stated in Note 25. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are exercisable
is different, such difference will impact the consolidated
income statement in the subsequent remaining vested
period of the relevant share options.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS,
INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial assets and derivative financial
instruments that are traded in an active market are
determined by the quoted market prices.

The fair value of investment property is determined by
using valuation technique. Details of the judgement and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 8.

For the fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments not traded in an active market,
the Group would use the quoted price provided
by counterparty to estimate the fair values. The
methodologies, models and assumptions used in valuing
these financial assets and derivative financial instruments
require judgement by management which are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date. For further details refer to section 3.3 above.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s
assumptions and estimates (Note 2.10). These calculations
require the use of estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(G)

(H)

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES AND ESTIMATED
IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group amortises its intangible assets with finite useful
lives on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives reflect the management’s
estimates of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these intangible
assets. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of three to five years. The Group
tests whether the intangible assets have suffered any
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.10. The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets
have been determined as the higher of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, i.e. the amount for which
the asset could be sold between knowledgeable and
willing parties, net of estimated costs of disposal. These
require the use of estimates.

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, and land
use rights have been depreciated or amortised based on
their estimated useful lives and estimated residual values.
Management has reviewed the estimated useful lives and
considers they are appropriate. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and land use rights of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions
in response to market conditions. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortization charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives or it
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense
in the future periods.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the
“CODM") that make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the
internal reporting of the Group in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The CODM considers the business from a product perspective
and assesses separately the performance of electronic products,
and moulds and plastic products.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of the results of reportable segments.
Finance income and costs, corporate income and expenses,
disposal gain of subsidiaries, relocation costs, fair value gains
of financial assets and share of losses of associates are not
included in the results for each operating segment that are
reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
financial statements.

Revenue from external customers is shown after elimination of
inter-segment revenue. Sales between segments are carried out
at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from external parties
reported to CODM is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax
assets, tax recoverable, available-for-sale financial assets, bond
investment, loan receivable, interests in associates and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities
of reportable segments exclude current and deferred income
tax liabilities and corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZDEER®

The segment information provided to the CODM for the MEBEE T —RNER_ZE—RHE= )5]
reportable segments for the years ended 31 March 2016 and = +—HIEFEAJEHRN iﬁﬁig =5
2015 is as follows: IRBARME DEERAT -

2016
—E-REF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products

products  Elimination

BER
EFEM BREM i A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FERT TERT TR

Revenue Uezs
Revenue from external customers — #pRE B Uizs 1,354,320 13,780 = 1,368,100
Inter-segment revenue SEEkE - 18,326 (18,326) -
1,354,320 32,106 (18,326) 1,368,100

Results of reportable segments AE2HNERE 71,325 208 = 71,533
A reconciliation of results of HomEER

reportable segments to profit FRENZEHENT -

for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments ERNBES 71,533
Unallocated income, net EK SR ONEIE 245
Other income EHAl A 2,183
Other gains, net Hiblzs - 5% 14,693
Operating profit IREHEF 88,654
Finance income BEWA 3,561
Finance costs BE R AR (2,996)
Share of losses of associates JELIE A REE (1,312)
Profit before income tax KA AR T 87,907
Income tax expense Frigfif% (8,596)
Profit for the year FRE A 79,311
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of land use rights
Additions to non-current assets
(other than interests in
associates, financial assets
and deferred tax assets)
Income tax expense

Hittn ER
nE - BERRENE

BV BESH
1356 PR 3
FRBEELRE

(RNBE DR 2 s

M EEREERA
BERMN)
PREMR X

Electronic
products

B7ER
HK$'000
T

22,953
5,710
1,016

39,842
8,592

—E—RE

Moulds and
plastic
products
EAR
BREM
HK$'000
TExT

806

57

90

Unallocated Total

L S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr AR

1,795 25,554
- 5,710

80 1,153
1,147 40,989
(86) 8,596
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

“T-hF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Elimination Total
EAK
BTEM BRBEmR #3H B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THAT THET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers 4N RE P U 1,317,435 24,489 - 1,341,924
Inter-segment revenue ballhes - 15,880 (15,880) -
1,317,435 40,369 (15,880) 1,341,924
Results of reportable segments AERNEEE 66,487 (2,528) - 63,959
A reconciliation of results of AEHmHBEER
reportable segments to profit FREH 2 HENT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments AZ2RDVEEE 63,959
Unallocated income, net AAMRA » F58 126
Other income HAdA 647
Other gains, net Hptilizs - FEE 117,914
Operating profit eyl 182,646
Finance income BB U 1,572
Finance costs BB A (3.364)
Provision for impairment of loan & ENFIB R E R
receivable (2,750)
Provision for impairment of interest A —FEE & A8 2R Kk
in an associate and amount due  FEU—RSEE & A RIFIB
from an associate ARG (1,752)
Share of loss of an associate JE(E— B N EEE (640)
Profit before income tax KA S AR T 175,712
Income tax expense FTERiF (5,698)
Profit for the year FREF 170,014
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset
Amortisation of land use rights
Additions to non-current assets
(other than interest in an
associate, financial assets and
deferred tax assets)
Income tax expense

Hittn ER
nE - BERRENE

BV BESH
Tt AR
FRPEENE

(RNBE DR 2 s

M EEREERA
BERMN)
PREMR X

Electronic
products

ETEm
HK$'000
FHT

21,854
5,154
1,080

109,659
5,620

Moulds and
plastic
products
RER
BRER
HK$'000
7t

1,131

58

14

Unallocated
AAMEL

HK$'000
TR

2,310

80

1,808
(86)

Total

At
HK$'000
SE

25,295
5,154
1,218

111,481
5,698
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER®
The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 March 2016 RZE—RERZE—RAF=ZA=1+—
and 2015 and the reconciliation to the total assets and total AzoBEER D HBBREERLENK
liabilities are as follows: BEREYERNT
—E—REF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
BAR
EFER BRER =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FE T T
Segment assets DEREE 854,345 29,969 884,314
Deferred income tax assets RIS EE 323
Tax recoverable Al EFIR 3,859
Unallocated: Rl
Property, plant and equipment  #)3 - /= &R 39,817
Investment property REWZE 10,000
Interests in associates AN A T 3,876
Loan receivable BERERGRIA 12,960
Other investments Hipk & 24,389
Other unallocated assets HEthRDBELEE 1,710
Total assets per consolidated SBEEEABRAT
balance sheet BERE 981,248
Segment liabilities HiAaE 180,582 3,947 184,529
Income tax payable FERT TS TR 12,931
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ iREFTEREE 1,443
Unallocated: ROBL ¢
Bank borrowings RITEE 112,129
Other unallocated liabilities Hit kDB BE 2,885

Total liabilities per consolidated 4r&&EBEXRT~
balance sheet BERE 313,917
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER®
—T-RHF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
HEAR
BETEMm BRBEM A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FBT
Segment assets PDEEAE 832,245 21,874 854,119
Deferred income tax assets EIEFR ST A E 762
Tax recoverable AU EI IR 4,105
Unallocated: RO
Property, plant and equipment  #)2 &= M & & 40,765
Investment property WEYZH 10,100
Loan receivable B EWEIA 13,500
Other investments HAi & 21,069
Other unallocated assets HEthRnBLEE 5,008
Total assets per consolidated HEBEBBRAT
balance sheet BEBE 949,428
Segment liabilities DEAE 186,221 3,235 189,456
Income tax payable FETFRSRE 9,370
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTHEE 2,105
Unallocated: RoBe
Bank borrowings RITEE 100,788
Other unallocated liabilities HEMARDEEEE 2,493
Total liabilities per consolidated  42& & EBBEXRAT
balance sheet BEREE 304,212

ARABRAREEM - AKEEE-F
—NER_F-AF=-A=1t—HLF
RRBEZREID ZIREFBWEAHAT

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. An analysis of the
Group'’s revenue from external customers by country for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016
—E—RE

HK$°000
THET

2015
—ET—RF
HK$'000
FHET

The United States of America EH 554,206 560,669
Japan HZ 277,427 311,398
United Kingdom T 168,466 180,847
PRC (including Hong Kong) PE(BEEE) 149,832 164,547
Australia SEM 79,184 53,718
Germany = 45,090 -
Taiwan = 40,989 5,471
Others Hith 52,906 65,274

1,368,100 1,341,924
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding
deferred income tax assets, by geographical locations is as
follows:

AEERERE D ZIERBEE(TER
EIEFSHREE) DT -

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T T

Hong Kong BB 90,847 89,262
Mainland China FR BT A 3 279,242 272,691
Macao JRPY 21 40
370,110 361,993

For the year ended 31 March 2016, there were three customers
each accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s external
revenue, with the sales of HK$208,179,000, HK$164,499,000
and HK$141,779,000 respectively. The revenue from these
three customers is attributable to the segment of electronic
products.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, there were four customers
each accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s external
revenue, with the sales of HK$218,336,000, HK$178,167,000,
HK$169,667,000 and HK$165,149,000 respectively. The
revenue from these four customers is attributable to the
segment of electronic products.

HE-_Z—XRF=ZA=+t—HIFEE
E-RAEPSEAEEIIBRZEZ10%
A E - MiEEEE S 54R208,179,0007%8
JC ~ 164,499,000 7% JT & 141,779,000 7%
T REZ=-BEFZWETIREETF

ELA
EDD% ?E °

HE_Z—HF=-A=+—HIEFE "
FNEEFPEGAEENDYEZEZ210%
A E - MIHERES R A218,336,0007%8
JC ~ 178,167,000 7T * 169,667,000 %
JL ] 165,149,000/ 7T © KRB ZUEE P
ZWETIREEFEMDE °
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 WX MEKEE
Leasehold Furniture
Land and improve- Plant and and  Construction
buildings ments machinery equipment in progress
M g BER FRR
THREF WELE W HfE EEIR
HK$'000 HK$' HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B B B B B
At 1 April 2014 R=Z-MmEMA-A
Cost KA 98,086 14,245 122,782 29,273 95,195 359,581
Accumulated depreciation Z2iE (19,638) (12,79) (101,766) (24,438) - (158,638)
Net book amount FHFE 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95,195 200,943
Year ended 31 March 2015 B2E-1E=A=1-H
ILEE
Opening net book amount ENEAFE 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95,195 200,943
Additions RE - 3,620 21,102 8873 76,252 109,847
Disposals LeE - (562) - (496) - (1,058)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29) ~ HEKBARM29) (23,909) - - - - (23,909
Revaluation on land and building upon EBEE(R T REF
transfer 6,790 - - - - 6,790
Transfer to investment property (Note 8) B B &M H:t8) (10,100) - - - - (10,100)
Transfer from construction in progress EHEERZ T 110,932 51,136 8,375 - (170,443) -
Depreciation Vil (3.894) (4,024) (13,683) (3,694) - (25,295)
Exchange differences EREE - - 11 5 8 9
Closing net book amount ERERFE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 257317
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-EEZR=t1-A
Cost KA 169,944 59,080 118,785 28,530 1,087 377426
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (1,677) (7.461) (81,964) (19,007) - (120,109)
Net book amount FHFE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 257317
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E-RE-fA=1-H
ILEE
Opening net book amount ENBRETE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 251,317
Additions RE - 5,684 6,480 2,590 25,346 40,100
Disposals e - - - (15) - (13)
Depreciation i (3.868) (5,706) (12,340) (3,640) - (25,554)
Exchange differences EREE (4,700) 2,08 (1,435) (429) (6) (8,612)
Closing net book amount FREREE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26421 263,236
At 31 March 2016 RZE-RE=R=1-H
Cost s 165,047 62,477 122,569 29,575 26427 406,095
Accumulated depreciation 2iENE (15,348) (12.922) (93,083) (21,546) - (142,859)
Net book amount BRFE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26,427 263,236
Depreciation of HK$13,214,000 (2015: HK$13,683,000) W& 13,214,000 Tt ( —ZF — H F
has been expensed in cost of sales, and HK$12,340,000 13,683,000 3% 7T ) & E’:\ 35 & B AN A X
(2015: HK$11,612,000) has been expensed in general and 34 0 MM 12,340,000/ (T — A F :
administrative expenses. 11,612,000/ 70 ) BIR — M RITH &R &
AR S'ifﬁ
As at 31 March 2016, certain bank borrowings are secured by RZE—R"F=ZRA=+—8 BT8R
land and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$38,406,000 & B I BR M {8 438,406,000/ 8 T (=&
(2015: HK$39,635,000) (Note 22). — R4 : 39,635,000 7T ) 2 + b B AEF

YRR (FRE22) -
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7 LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights represented prepaid
operating lease payments and their movements and net book
value are analysed as follows:

7 LTiifEARE

e

AEERLEREZESAEERE
BNFR - AR RREFE DN

2016 2015

—T—hRF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Beginning of the year REH] 55,528 58,973
Amortisation e (1,153) (1,218)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29) HEWBAR(H229) - (2,227)
Exchange differences ME 5 5 (1,084) -
End of the year RELL 53,291 55,528

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

8 BREYWX

2016 2015

— i —TRF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEIT AT

Beginning of the year REY) 10,100 -
Transfer from land and buildings (Note 6)  #E# @B + 3t M EF (Hf:t6) - 10,100
Additions NE 300 -
Fair value loss NEEE (400) -
End of the year REER 10,000 10,100

Note:

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment property:

BfAE

2016
—ZB—REF

HK$000
TEx

MREYENIERRER 2 EH

2015
=T A
HK$:000
FEL

B WA

Rental income

360 120

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations
for future repairs and maintenance.

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment property was
performed by the valuer, Ascent Partners Transaction Service Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment property at the date of transfer
and as at 31 March 2016.

The valuation was determined by using direct comparison method (Level
3 approach). Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size.

MZZE-—RE=ZA=1t—0 FEELEFHER
RBERREZ RBBANEE -

BRI AER SRBERANDRAREZ
AR T 1 - BERAMERERA
BMR-F-—AF=A=t—BZAFME:

REDERERLER(E=RIE)ETE - £
ARt ERMEZ EECR TR (PIYEE
B2 ZREHPE -
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represent customer relationship and product
development costs. Movement during the year is as follows:

Customer
relationship

EFEE

2016 2015
ZE-xE  —T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

BILEE

B AEREF BERERBERA -
HERZ BB -

Product
development Total

EmAE At T
2016 2015 2016 2015

B2 -T-1f | ZB-AF -T-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TATL ThRL TAT TEL FhT
Beginning of the year RER 10,738 15,892 1,634 - 12312 15,892
Additions AE - - 589 1634 589 1,634
Amortisation (Note 30)  #§(#530) (5,154) (5,154) (556) - (5,710) (5,154)
End of the year RER 5,584 10,738 1,667 1,634 7,251 12,372

Amortisation of HK$5,710,000 (2015: HK$5,154,000)
is included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

# $55,7100008 T (—Z T — R F
5,154,000 7C) Jist AR E I E R —A%
RITHERERET -
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I

10 GOODWILL 10 &

2016 2015
—E—XE —T—AHF

HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
REGI R FL 3,949 3,949

Beginning and end of the year

IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR GOODWILL
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU") within the electronic products segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period which incorporate the
following key assumptions.

AR AR
HEDHREAEKBANEFERDER
ZREEEBM((REELEM]) -

ReEABEM 2 RE SR IVIRERE
EEEET -  ARATEDREBEEER
BHtZRERFHR 2 MBEEELZ
Iﬁ%mui?g/ﬁlhﬁ E’T%TEJEK@X

leo

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
cGU 1 cGU 2 CGU 1 CGU 2
He e B B
EAEBEN1 EEEN2 EAEM1 EAEBEM2
Gross margin FEF= 14.0% 22.0% 11.8% 22.0%
Discount rate BLIR X 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin and revenue
growth rate based on past performance and their expectations
for market development. The discount rates used are pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
Cash flows beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using a growth rate that do not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the businesses in which the CGUs
operate.

Based on the discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management, the directors are of the view that there is no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2016.

ZEBRRCHEIMEZEDBETER
BEEEN -

EEEREBERRIEMBER A
HEFEMNERAERKSERE - K
AR ESTAIA R - ] RARIERE D
BrEERR - BREHEEREDRMN
ZERERENERALTEBRRTELE
UEEZEB s RPFHEREERZER
THER

REE EEIEZE%”ZEHEEQEE%WE
A EEZRLSRAEBER TR F=H
=t+—RIAEEE -
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11 SUBSIDIARIES

11 HEBEAT

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 AKRBR_E—AR"F=ZA=+—HzZ=*

March 2016 are as follows:

Suga International Limited (i)

Suga Electronics (Hong Kong)
Limited
EEBRAT]

Suga Electronics Limited (i)

EEETERAR

Suga Digital Technology Limited
EEEBRHRARAT

Precise Computer Tooling Co.,
Limited
RIEKHIRARAA

On Million Limited
s BRAE

Suga Technology Limited
EERMARAF

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
FEMARSL /PR ALt B
REEERER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERKES  ARAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

B BRRA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

B8 BRRA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAA

BB AEMT -

Issued share

capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest

BB/ BARK

REBEERAER
2016 2015
—E-xF -—T-HF

Ordinary shares 100% 100%
us$700

LBRI00%T

100%

Ordinary shares HK$2 100%

EER2ET

Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%

LER2ET

Non-voting 100% 100%
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 (ii)

RESEETERD
4,000,000/ 7t(ii)

100%

Ordinary shares HK$2 100%

LER2BT

Ordinary shares 100% 100%
HK$500,000

8%500,000% 7T

Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%

EER2ET

Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%

EER2ET

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
RExHE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBUSRELER

Trading of electronic
products in Hong
Kong

REBEEETER

Trading of electronic
products in Hong
Kong

REBEESTEM

Design and trading of
electronic products
in Hong Kong

REERHNEE
BfEm

Trading of moulds and
plastic products in
Hong Kong

REBEERAR

BBEM

Property holding in
Hong Kong
REBRENE

Trading of electronic
products in Hong
Kong

REBEESTEM

®
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11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EBABE)

ARBR-_B-RF=ZA=+—B2ZE

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
March 2016 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
AL/ B ALt R
RERERER

Issued share
capital/paid-up capital

BRI/ HARE

SHEBAAEENT ¢ (&)

Group equity interest

REBEERAER
2016 2015
“E-RFf —T-AF

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
RExHE

Time Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary shares HK$2 90% 90%  Investment holding in
BRCEERDNE limited liability company ~ LiEAR2ET Hong Kong
B8 BRAA REBREREER
SGI Venture Limited (iii) Hong Kong, Ordinary shares HK$100 80% 52%  Design and trading of
EEEREABRA) limited liability company @100 7T electronic products
E& - BRAR in Hong Kong
REBRTREER
EfEm
Suga Technology Hong Kong Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited limited liability company HK$100,000 products in Hong
EERNEEARAT B8 BRAA EiE%100,0007 T Kong
REBEEETEM
Suga Macao Commercial Offshore  Macao, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronics
Limited limited liability company MOP100,000 products in Macao
FERMBERERBERLA  EF ARRA EiB%100,0002F9% RRFEEETER
Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mainland China, HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing of pet
("PSSL") (iv) limited liability company 10,000,000/ 7 products in Mainland
HEEX(RI)ERLR hEA - BRAT China
(TafEm I ) (w) INRE A EREY
Em
United Fountain Investment Ltd. ~ Hong Kong, Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100%  Pet food distribution
ERRERRAH limited liability company ~ Z3ERR 17T DEENRA
BB BRRA
Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Mainland China, HK$33,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. (v), (xv) limited liability company 33,500,000/ 7C electronic products
EEEF(RINERDRAW), «v)  HEIANM - BRAF in Mainland China
RoE RS E T
Em

®
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11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 MEBAEE)

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 ARER_E—AR"F=ZA=+—Hz=*
March 2016 are as follows: (Continued) KM-H%Z\\ SHIEWT (&)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

AEMERL /B h B
REeERER

Issued share

capital/paid-up capital

BRI/ BARE

2016

e

Group equity interest

FRERGRAER

2015

—ZT-hE

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
RExHH

Suga Electronics (Dongguan) Co.  Mainland China, US$5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Limited ("SEDG") (vi), (xv) limited liability company 5,000,000 ¢ electronic products
BERT(RR)ERAT PER - ARAT i einlend Chinz
(IEEEFRZ]W), (v) R E A
BfEm
Long Join (Hong Kong) Electronics  Hong Kong, Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Design and trading of
Co., Limited limited liability company L2257 electronic products
ER(BBETERLA B% - BRAR in Hong Kong
REBRHRER
BFEM
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling and Mainland China, US$6,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Plastic Injection (Huizhou) Co., limited liability company ~ 6,000,00037¢ moulds and plastic
Limited (“Nodic") (vii), (xv) hER - ERAT products in Mainland
Bh-RARETE(EM) China
BRAF(THE A Do), (xv) ReENEERA
REBES
Suga Technology (Dongguan) Mainland China, US$12,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. ("STDG") (vm) (xv) limited liability company ~ 12,000,000% T electronic products
REAMBKEIARA IR - BRAR in Mainland China
(TSR ERT 5 1) viii), ( V) WA E R E
EFER
Suga USA Inc. USA, Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding in
limited liability company Us$10 USA
B BRATF LEkI0ET RERRFREAR
Suga Networks Equipment Mainland China, HK$17,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“SNESL") limited liability company 17,500,000 1 electronic products
(ix), (xv) HER  BRAR in Mainland China
EEBESE ORI ERAR R ERhEEE
([MEERREEH )(x), (x ) Em
Chummily Trading (Shenzhen) Mainland China, HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of pet products
Limited ("CTL") (), (xv) limited liability company 1,000,000/ 1 in Mainland China
FXBH (RN ERAF HER - BRAR RREREEED
(X80, ) 6
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11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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11

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31

March 2016 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
klnd of legal entity

L/ AL R

Espetsso Limited Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

Chummily Technology (Tianjin) Mainland China,
Co., Ltd ("CTLTI") (xi), (xv) limited liability company
RESXHBRBRAT REP - BRATF
(TR=EEX ), ()

Chummily International Trading ~ Mainland China,

(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd limited liability company
("CTLGZ") {xii), (xv) PR - BRAF
BNERERESERAR

([EME %)HO()

Happypaws International Limited ~ Hong Kong,
(il limited liability company
RO E BB AR Ri) B8 BRAA

Chongmi Investment & Consultation - Mainland China,
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd ("CMIC") limited liability company
(xiii), (xv) RENL - BRAT

FIEIBERREZAERAR
(TEERIRA ] (i), (xv)

Issued share
capital/paid-up capital

BRI/ BARE

Ordinary shares HK$1
LRRET

HK$2,400,000
2,400,000 7T

HK$Nil
57

Ordinary shares HK$10
LRER10ET

HK SNl
TR

LRI PNCINE ),

RRARR =T —
EZMBARFEAT -

2016

S

100%

100%

100%

100%

80%

RNFE=ZA=+—Hzx

Group equity interest

AEEEGRAER

2015

“ZT-hF

70%

(&)

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
REXH

Distribution of
pet food
PEENRM

Distribution of
pet food
DHENRG

Distribution of
pet food
PEENRR

Pet food distribution
in Asia countries
RENERDEHED
N
Ran

Consulting services

BRRS

®
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11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
March 2016 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

@

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

The shares of Suga International Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of the other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics Limited are held
by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway Business Limited,
which are owned by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On, directors
and beneficial shareholders of the Company. These non-voting
deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends,
and are not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless a
sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been distributed
to the holders of the ordinary shares.

The Group has increased the shareholding without change of control
in its subsidiaries during the year (Note 35).

PSSL was deregistered during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in Mainland China with an approved period of
operation of 20 years until June 2024.

SEDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 20 years until
December 2033.

Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 30 years until
September 2020.

STDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 20 years until April
2027.

SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 20 years until October
2022.

CTL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 30 years until April
2041.

CTLTJ is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 30 years until
December 2045.

CTLGZ is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 30 years until
December 2045.

CMIC is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 20 years until
December 2033.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a financial
accounting year end date on 31 December in accordance with the
local statutory requirements, which is not coterminous with the
Group. The consolidated financial statements of the Group were
prepared based on the management accounts of these subsidiaries
for the twelve months ended 31 March 2016.

11 S

ZAUN

EMBA
Bt

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

YNGIIE-))

ARZE-—RE=ZA=+—HzZ=x

BIFHEWT : (&)

Suga International Limited Z B¢ AR &
BH - i B AR 2 &kH B4
AIEEERA -

EEEFTARARZERRR
2 @ Essentlal Mix Enterprise
Broadway Business Limited
NEAAARREEHRE SRR
TRERBALRA - 5e
5&%1’\%%&?%@2%13')1%“\
‘”ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ/\ﬂ%ﬁj“
00000000&%73@
OB AT AIESIK

FERR
F AN BN B A B2 R AR
(PR mE &) (F5E35)

MR ERBE-F—AF=A=+—
A Er R -

EEEFORIERA B BEDE ALK
U BINERE Bt EEBREE
—TEEARAL - BER20% -

FEEETREATETRAMK Y 2 ZINE
¥ BREZEENREE-S==F
+= A1k - BEI20%F -

B H REPBE AR 2 2N EDE - &
B EEBREE S _TFNAL
AHI304F o

Rl

wv

s
gm
=3

t
g @

sl
o

B2 S8 - =H

BRI

S
-

S
540 T M3 W

o
LN

8 T
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ot

&
4B
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T
N

]

E*ﬁ
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XEREEZ

S H] 58 /&3
Tz E E-T+FNW
1E » BHI20%F -

EEMBESIM RIED AR 2 2HME
¥ BREZEEHREE_T_—
THALE - BHI20% -

EXRETEAMKT 2 ZINERE - #&
BEZEXHREE _TM—FMAL
FAEA30EF o

CTILTVAEFBE AL 2 BINEDE -
B g EHREE_TNAE+ A
1F - AHA304F -

CTLGZ BER BRI L 2 RINERE -
B AEXRREE _EMNAF+ A
1E + AHI30%F

CMICAEF B AL 2 ZIERE -
Bz a(HREE-_T==F1+=A
1k - BEA204F -

MEZE—
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(a)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

12

REFE QB 2B

(a) REE QT 2D

Group

REE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FBTT
Beginning of the year REH] = 1,702
Increase in interests in associates NI Tl 5,188 423
Share of losses of associates FE(REE N A B R (1,312) (640)

Provision for impairment on interest R—EBE QTR

in an associate (Note 30) BERE(F30) - (1,485)
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 3,876 -

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s associates, which

are unlisted, are as follows:

Particulars of Country of
issued shares held  incorporation

BRCEROSE  SRRLER

CKICOM Technology Limited
("CKICOM") (Note)
CKICOM Technology Limited
(TcKicom )
Concept Infinity Limited Ordinary shares
("cL") HKS1 (2015: HK$1)
EREEERAF(EEAE]) LARAT
(Z2-1%:137)

Ordinary shares
HKS1 (2015: HKS1)
LafkiEn
(%-1% 1E7)

Hong Kong, limited
liabiity company
BE - BRAA

Hong Kong, imited
libilty company
R

ZE-3E “T-1F ZE-E C3-1F ZEAF |ZE-1F 2BaE C3-1F

Interest held Assets
ERE 73
2016 2015 216
HKS'000
TERL
1921%  1921% 206
25% - M

Although the Group has less than a 20% equity interests
in CKICOM, the Group has significant influence over
CKICOM and is able to participate in the financial and

operating policy decisions of CKICOM.

As at 31 March 2015, the interest in CKICOM has been

fully impaired by HK$1,485,000.

HK$'000
Tin

1073

REBMZIELTBERRZEER
BEMT :

Loss

Bg

2016 2015
ZE-3F C5-1%
HK$'000 + HKS'000. HKS'000  HK$'000
T | ThR Thn| Thn
17,600 I 87 9% 3330

Revenue
16
2016

Liabilities
Bf

2015 2016 2015 2015

HKS'000

THL

HKS'000
Thn
18,562

- 1106 - Al - 449 -

B SR 7N 5 B A CKICOM FR BB B

R20% B Az - (B2 AEEE
CKICOMBEARFE N - LA KEES

EACKICOMAY BT 2 A8 & BRSRRTE o

R—_E—RHF=A=Z+—8H -
CKICOM Zz # &= B & &R &
1,485,000 7T °
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12

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in CIL
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

12 REtE AT 2B

(a)

(%)

REE QB 2w (E)

B R E R B B S B TS R
KRR ZREEERREEN Y
BE :

2016
S

HK$°000
TET

Net assets of CIL as at 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=1+—HZE2BaE
%&%a&fﬁ 1,806
Proportion of the Group's ownership AREBRSEEISHEAEERZED
interest in CIL 25%
Net assets of CIL attributable to the Group AEBEEERAIE 2 EEFE 451
Goodwill (Note) B (HE) 3,425
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in CIL  ZANEEREA8AIE 7 HE5BRE(E 3,876

Note:

Included in the cost of unlisted investments in Concept Infinity Limited
is goodwill of HK$3,425,000 arising on acquisitions during the year.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

Amount due from an associate of HK$431,000 is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). Amount due
from CKICOM of 267,000 was fully impaired as at 31
March 2015.

(b)

Wi

BREAZARARZIELTREKNARIE
FRYEEE 2 583,425,000 7T ©

FEUR — R Bt & N Bl 5k 18
RZE—AR"FE=A=+—"H8 " EW
— B B & A B FR A 431,0008 T &
ﬁ%fi?ﬁ Tt EREREREE
—hF &) o EUYCKICOM
?£1§267,0005’§7TEE(\\:%—£¢
=A=+—HB&EERE -
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13 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(@) INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

13 R—EREREZRE

() R—EEELEZRE

2016
=T-RF

HK$"000
TExT

2015
—E—HF
HK$'000
FiBT

\
R
N

Investment in a joint venture

—HABELRZRE

The assets and liabilities of the joint venture, which is
unlisted, is as follows:

Particulars of
issued shares held

BARCRORGHE

Country of
incorporation
A IER

% Interest held
ihR ARt
2016 2015
ENF CR-IE
HKS'000 HKS'000
Tén  Tin

50% 50%

2016

= i
HK$000:
Thn
TARC Holdings 658
Limited

Ordinary shares HK$ 1
ERET

Hong Kong, limited
liabiity company
B BRAA

There are no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the
joint venture, and no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments exist in the joint venture as at 31 March
2016.

(b) AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

Assets

FETmEaBERECEERBEN
™

Profit

&l

2016
E-5E
HKS'000
TERL
(149)

Revenue

g
2016
7%
HK$'000
Thn

Liabilities
=
2R

2016
“E-nE
HKS000
TR
850

2015
“%-1f
HK$1000

TR

2015
“5-1%
HK$'000
Fin

@)

HK$'000

BT

HK$'000

TEL

748 91

RZZE—RE=ZR=+—H UWEK
SERZAECENESHBENIRE
BEREAAE  ZABELENITEFELT
AR BB R EAEIE

(b) FEW—BEERHENE

2016
—E—REF

HK$'000
FTHET
404

R —FR A BEREA

Amount due from a joint venture

2015
—T—RHF
HK$'000
FBTT

404

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand as at 31 March
2016.

RZB—AF=A=+—0 " BK
—FIA &R EREREER AR5
BRBIREREE -
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY

CATEGORY

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

14 BERED M BEERER

Loans and
receivables

EXRREWER

HK$°000
TET

Available-
for-sale
AfHE
HK$'000
FiET

Total
=
HK$'000
T

Assets BE
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—R"E=ZA=t+—-H
Available-for-sale financial AR ERBEE

assets (Note 15) (Biat15) - 16,678 16,678
Bond investment (Note 16) BHRE (Hit16) 7,711 - 7,711
Trade and other receivables, FEU R SRR R E A UK

excluding prepayments B - MEEBENZUE

(Note 18) (K15£18) 206,668 - 206,668
Amount due from VG /NCIE O |

an associate (Note 12(b)) (K15£12(b)) 431 = 431
Amount due from El—HaEEHE

a joint venture (Note 13) (Hit13) 404 - 404
Cash and cash equivalents Ao MRE&EEY

(Note 20) (H#:#20) 225,027 - 225,027

440,241 16,678 456,919

Loans and
receivables
B eI

HK$'000
TAT

Available-
for-sale
Al E
HK$'000
TAT

Total
At
HK$'000
T

Assets BE
At 31 March 2015 R-E-HF=HA=+—H
Available-for-sale AEHEREEE

financial assets (Note 15) (Biet15) - 13,358 13,358
Bond investment (Note 16) BEH&E (H1iE16) 7,711 - 7,711
Trade and other receivables, TEUE FER N H b FE U

excluding prepayments B MEEEMNFE

(Note 18) (Biz#18) 201,600 - 201,600
Amount due from W —MEELEFA

a joint venture (Note 13) (B1:#13) 404 - 404
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEN

(Note 20) (B15£20) 176,989 - 176,989

386,704 13,358 400,062
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY

CATEGORY (continued)

Liabilities
At 31 March 2016
Trade and other payables

afE

m__

—AEZB=+-8

JERT & SRR R At

14 %%

(%)

Liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss

BATE

AR
28
HK$'000
Fi8%

Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHRAR
B8Rz EAth
BgaE
HK$'000
T

B2 BEERER

Al
HK$000
F7

(Note 21) FERTRRIE(Ha21) = 185,468 185,468
Bank borrowings (Note 22) BITEE(HF22) - 112,129 112,129
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTA

(Note 19) (BizE19) 1,946 = 1,946

1,946 297,597 299,543

Liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss

BATE
ua)\ia\/ iy
ZEfE
HK$'000
FET

Other

financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TRESHP AR
5I|8% 2 EAth
BBaRE
HK$'000
TAT

Total

At
HK$'000
Fb7t

Liabilities JE
At 31 March 2015 \—E-HF=R=+—H
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 Rk R Eoh

(Note 21) e OB (Br7221) - 187,768 187,768
Bank borrowings (Note 22) RITIEE(Hi#22) - 100,788 100,788
Derivative financial instruments TEE®MIA

(Note 19) (B1:£19) 4,181 - 4,181

4,181 288,556 292,737
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15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

15 AMEHEMBERE

2016 2015

—EF—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

At 1 April RIWA—H 13,358 7,547
Addition NE - 3,875
Fair value gain NS EN G 3,320 1,936
At 31 March R=A=+—H 16,678 13,358

As at 31 March 2016, the available-for-sale financial assets
represented 3,288 (2015: 3,288) and 500 (2015: 500) non-
voting, redeemable, and participating shares in unlisted equity
funds.

They are denominated in United States dollars and their fair
values are determined based on the net asset values of the
funds calculated by the fund administrators with reference
to the quoted prices in active markets of the underlying
investments of the funds.

16 BOND INVESTMENT

At 31 March

R-ZZT—RE=ZA=+—8 " AlEtLe
M EERIELMRAESF3,288%
(ZZ—FR4F : 3,2880%) K500 (==
—FRF : 500/%) ERIREN]E R L8R
BRgH o

BREENEXTIIE  EXFEDRE

HeBEBAZ2ZES HBRENERE
mis 2 REFEZESEEFEMETE °

16 BEHFKRE

2016
=

2015
—ET—RF
HK$'000
T

7,711

HK$°000
TExT
7,711
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16 BOND INVESTMENT (Continued) 16 EXREw®)
The terms of maturity of the bond investment is summarised as BARE 7 B st T
follows:
2016 2015
g VAL S —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Less than 1 year DR—F - -
Between 1 and 2 years F—FEFF = -
Between 2 and 5 years F_FEERTF 7,711 7,711
Over 5 years AEFLE = -
7,711 7,711
The coupon rate of the bond investment is 5.55% (2015: 5.55%) BHEREZERRBTFS555%(=F
per annum. —H%F :555%) °
The bond investment is denominated in United States dollars. BEHIREAETIIE °
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RBERE - FAEERBRABERRE
carrying amount of the bond investment. ZBRHEE °
17 INVENTORIES 17 FE
2016 2015
g VAY: S —T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials FR 114,623 137,934
Work-in-progress K 25,156 34,267
Finished goods X 32,210 26,070
171,989 198,271
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (4,628) (5,453)
167,361 192,818
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BRAEAI R AHEXN T ZFEX
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,011,154,000 (2015: N/431,011,154,0008 T (ZF— A F -
HK$992,393,000). 992,393,000 7T) ©

®



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWEZERMRKH MBI
2016 2015
—E-hfF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade receivables EUE SRR 189,182 180,524
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (3.836) (3,878)
Trade receivables, net JEWE S IRKFE 185,346 176,646
Prepayment to vendors TERTE T RIE 5,068 9,768
Other prepayments HA B HIA 6,115 2,647
Rental and other deposits HekHEMiEe 1,692 1,803
Value added tax receivables FEWIE(E T 2,310 5,983
Others HA 4,360 3,668
204,891 200,515
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 AR 51 K Eo b E U IR
— current portion —mENE D 200,773 198,857
— non-current portion —3EmBIE S 4,118 1,658
204,891 200,515
Loan receivable (Note a) B EWGRIA (M ita) 15,600 16,250
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE RS (2,640) (2,750)
12,960 13,500
Total trade and other receivables JEUE ZERF N E A
JE W IR 4R RE 217,851 214,015
The carrying values of the Group's trade and other receivables NEEEWE SRR E A B FIE 2
approximate their fair values. REEEA N TERE ©
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 FEWE S ERF R HMEWFIE

(#&)
At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the ageing analysis of the trade RZE—RERZZE—RAF=ZA=+—
receivables based on invoice date were as follows: B BREFEFREZEHZIERES
T -
2016 AON )
— i —TRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT AT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 175,791 161,906
31 to 60 days 31%260H 2,192 4,935
61 to 90 days 61%290H 2,771 7,788
91 to 180 days 91£180H 4,151 1,256
Over 180 days 180B LA E 4,277 4,639
189,182 180,524
Less: Provision for impairment VB R E B (3,836) (3,878)
Trade receivables, net FEWE ZERFUFEE 185,346 176,646
All trade receivables are either repayable within one year or on FrERKE SEFAR—FANEARE
demand. SKIEEE -
The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to its AEE—RHETHEFBZEER -
customers.
As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$9,555,000 (2015: R-ZE—R"F=ZA=+—H - 9,555,000
HK$14,740,000) were past due but not considered impaired. BIL(ZZT—AF : 14,740,000 7T ) Z
These relate to a number of independent customers who have BWE GERDBIHERRILERE -
no recent history of default. The ageing of these receivables is as ZERWE SRS &3 B |iE R
follows: REBECEURFER MWERKENRZ
FREIN T -
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBT FHTT
31 to 60 days 31260H 2,192 4,935
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,771 7,788
91 to 180 days 91£180H 4,151 1,256
Over 180 days 1808 A £ a41 761
9,555 14,740
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$3,836,000
(2015: HK$3,878,000) were considered impaired. The individual
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers which no
longer have business relationship with the Group. The amount
of provision was HK$3,836,000 as of 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$3,878,000). The impairment was firstly assessed individually
for significant or long ageing balances, and the remaining
balances were grouped for collective assessment according to
their ageing and historical default rates as these customers were
of similar credit risk. The ageing of these impaired receivables is
as follows:

Over 180 days 180H A E

18 EWE 5 RN HA B FIR

(%)

R-ZT—XE=ZA=+—H - 3,836,000
BEIL(ZZE—FREF : 3,878,000/ T ) 2 fE
WE ZERREBERE - ER 2 RERE
WA ZHFmERNEEE EBBEER
ZEFEHEE . —E—AR"F=A=+—8
7 B4 /53,836,000 T ( ZE— R F ¢
3,878,00087C) - EAREEAD AL H
BEGEEBLTE  ARBEEFZ
EEREBAEM  WHBEREERER BT
AR RS EIERETE - HWEBRE
FEURBR TR 2 BRER TN TS -

2016 2015
=E-RF

—E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T
3,836 3,878

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

FEWE BRSO ER B E T

2016 2015

= —T-HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At 1 April REA—H 3,878 3,898
Exchange differences b 5 =5 (42) (20)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,836 3,878

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor considered impaired in the amount of HK$175,791,000
(2015: HK$161,906,000) could be assessed by reference to
their payment history and current financial position. These
receivables relate to a whole range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Management believes
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance is expected to be fully recoverable.

FEHEARBAEBRERKE S K
£ 175,791,000 8 Tt (=T — A F
161,906,000 L) 2 EEE A2 Z K
WA ERRIART SRR EITIEE © 5%
ERINFIEE S Z R W EE Rk
XEFEEMB - EREME ANEEE X
WESREHRZEEHTBHIT2EK
B - MIBARZEERIELRERE -
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the trade receivables from five customers
accounted for approximately 31% (2015: 48%) of the total
trade receivables. The Group’s credit risk management is
disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

During the year, no additional provision (2015: Nil) was
recognised for impairment of its trade receivables. This provision
has been included in the general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated income statement.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

18 EIWE 5 R K H A B FIR
(%)

MN-EBE—RE=A=+—0 kBAAK
BEZEKREZETEERKE SERE
FA3N% (T —RF : 48%) - KEE
ZIEERBREERM S REMEIHE -

FR - ARELERERE S ERFBE
HREMEE( T —RF : 8) - i
BEFAGERBERA—RIITHERE
ERET -

FEWE SRR Z BRI ERIA T EHIIE

2016
=T-RF

2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
FiBT

HK$°000
TExT

Hong Kong dollars BT 105,566 4,751
United States dollars =TT 73,253 164,332
Renminbi AR 10,363 11,441

189,182 180,524

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as their
counterparties are either banks, government, corporation or
individual with good credit ratings. The majorities of these
financial assets are neither past due nor impaired and there is
no history of default. The carrying amount of deposits, value
added tax receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

AEEY T ABEZS - RUCEER K
HtEWHRREEAEERR - REAR
RN ARRT RFLEBRIIFE
BBz ARSEMEA - ZEHMBEEKN
BRI ARRE - BEXEHERAC
B o BE ~ RUCRED & E A B R
ZERHERATEEIIE

2016
—E—RE

2015
—E—ARF
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FTHET

Hong Kong dollars AT 979 825
Renminbi ARE 18,466 21,425
United States dollars =TT 1,873 2,699
Others Hith 4 5

21,322 24,954
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

The loan receivable represents a loan to a third party of
RMB 13,000,000 (2015: RMB13,000,000) (equivalent to
HK$15,600,000 (2015: HK$16,250,000). Such loan bears
interest at 6% per annum and was originally repayable on
15 November 2014. The loan is secured by the pledge of a
property located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and a 98.81% equity interest in a PRC incorporated
company, which is engaged in educational consultancy
services.

The loan receivable was past due as at 31 March 2016.
The directors of the Company had performed an
impairment assessment taking into account the value
of the pledged property of the loan receivable. As of 31
March 2016, an impairment provision against such loan
receivable of HK$2,640,000 (2015: HK$2,750,000) was
made.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security, except for the loan receivable of approximately
HK$12,960,000 (2015: HK$13,500,000).

19 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward foreign exchange REIINES XY

contracts

18 FEWE 5 RN H AU
(#)

(@) EBRERFEARHTE=INE
AR ®13,000,000c( = —F
F : AR #13,000,0007T) (HZ=
715,600,000 T(ZF—HF :
16,250,000/ 70) - B E RIS
FeRMFETER L - WRER
—ET-NF+—A+HEBAEE-&®
SRAERALAAZE AR LB ([
B ) B4 % K — e A B s AL
MR E (EEBAHEBERRS)&
98.81% A E A o

BRERFREBEBR=ZE—A"F=A
=t+—HE®BH - ARRESEHE
ITRERE - EF Tt REREMKR
HZBFWEEER - RS —~F
—A=Z+—H8 EREFEKFE
B R (B 5 152,640,000 (=&
—FH :2,750,000/87T) °

REREBHACESEERR AL
MEFEEWFEZ AFE - NER
WEFHEAERARERR - #E
X JE Uk TR I8 #9 12,960,000 7T (=
T —F 4 13,500,000 7T ) RN o

19 T¢I A
2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BE &f&E BE AR
HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTHET TERT TAT TAET

- 1,946 - 4,181

The outstanding notional principal amounts of the forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2016 were

US$7,000,000 (2015: US$44,000,000). This foreign exchange

forward contract is held for trading and will expire in October

2016 (2015: November 2015 and October 2016).

REINEAHON —_E—RNFZA=1+—
Bz& T®%&EANEEA7,000,000E7L(=
T — R 1 44,000,0003%7T) ° ;ZERH
INESHTIFEEBT TR T —F
+A(ZZE—RHF: —T—AF+—AK
—E—REtA)Em e
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20

RERREEEY

2015
S S
HK$'000
T

2016
—E—RE

HK$'000
THET

Cash at bank and on hand BTN FHERS 208,227 148,239
Short-term bank deposits PSEESYER=N 16,800 28,750
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 225,027 176,989

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

RelkBRoSEYRATERIIE :

currencies:
2016 2015
= —T-hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Hong Kong dollars BT 20,504 17,903
United States dollars =TT 137,000 89,570
Renminbi NG 67,288 69,379
Other currencies Hih gk 235 137
225,027 176,989

As at 31 March 2016, the effective interest rate on bank
deposits was 0.5% (2015: 0.4%) per annum. The bank deposits
of the Group have an average maturity of 7 days (2015: 7 days).

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the Group
denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland Chinese Government.

RZEBE—RF=A=+—80 " RITEX
CEBMNERATFOS%(—E—HEF
0.4%) - REBZRITHER 2 FHREA
BIR(ZZE—HF :7K) °

AEBEAAREFEZRITEHLRES
RBBING - BXPBENMBETEMG 2
SNEE Bl AR B S R TE PR 1] =
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 ENE SRR EHAENFE

2016 2015
—E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET

Trade payables B E SRR 149,764 148,930

Salaries and staff welfare payable e kB ITER 13,547 14,401

Accrued expenses FEETER 6,036 4,662

Others Hib 16,121 19,775
Total trade and other payables JEHE 5 BRI M E A fE LS

FIAMETE 185,468 187,768

(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice (@ ENEZRFREZRHZERED
date were as follows: T

2016 2015

—EB-RE —T-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

0 to 30 days 0£30H 135,102 134,542

31 to 60 days 31260H 6,767 3,881

61 to 90 days 61290H 473 690

91 to 180 days 91£2180H 2,658 3,318

Over 180 days 180H A 4,764 6,499

149,764 148,930

RERE RN E 5 R L E R
Rz A HEREREERS

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables
approximate their carrying values.

e B B R FREERIA T ERE

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated

in the following currencies: FIMA
2016 PAON )
—E-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT AT
Hong Kong dollars BT 18,897 15,721
United States dollars EV» 107,793 117,049
Renminbi AR 23,064 16,147
Other Hth 10 13
149,764 148,930
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 21 BRHEZERREREMEIRIE
(%)
(b)  The carrying amounts of other payables are denominated (b) EMEMZKIEZEmMEIZRNTEE
in the following currencies: BI{H :
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Hong Kong dollars BT 11,528 13,220
Renminbi AR 22,490 23,592
United States dollars xET 1,686 2,026
35,704 38,838
22 BANK BORROWINGS 22 RITEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—HRF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THEx T
Non-current ERB
Long-term bank borrowings RHRITEE 112,129 100,788
Less: current portion of long-term W REASRITEEREE S
bank borrowings (101,197) (88,383)
10,932 12,405
Current RE
Current portion of long-term bank RERITEERBHBS
borrowings 101,197 88,383
Total borrowings EE85E 112,129 100,788

®



SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

22 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 22 RITIEE @)

The terms of borrowings are as follows: BER T8 2 5
2016 2015
gAY S —ZE-—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Within one year —F R 101,197 88,383
In the second year E_F 4,288 2,863
Between 2 and 5 years F_FEERF 6,644 9,542
112,129 100,788

At 31 March 2016, the Group has aggregate banking facilities MRZEBE-—RF=RA=+—0  x&EE

of approximately HK$663,250,000 (2015: HK$610,195,000) for BY  BERREIRMEERITEER

overdrafts, loans and trade financing. %8 #7663,250,000/8 L (— T — A F :
610,195,0007%7T) °

Unused facilities at the same date amounted to approximately B B2 KB ELE #551,121,00078 7T

HK$551,121,000 (2015: HK$509,407,000). These facilities are (ZZ—A%F : 509,407,000 7T) ° &%

secured by: EbE LA T 5118 B EHE AR -

(@) certain land and buildings (Note 6) of the Group (a) 7% B Bk (B & 38,406,000 8 7T
with the carrying amount of HK$38,406,000 (2015: —ZE—AF :39,63500087L) 2
HK$39,635,000). HT L Mg T (KicEe) -

(b) corporate guarantees provided by the Company and (b) ARARRHETHEBARREMHEZA
certain of its subsidiaries. AFELR o

In addition to the above, the Group is required to comply with Br LiiE SN - AEBBAETE TRITHE

certain restrictive financial covenants imposed by certain banks. Nz & T RSB -
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22 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate

22 RITEE#®)

AEERBREEHZNXEPRRE RN

changes and the contractual repricing dates were as follows: ENEEBENAT

2016 2015
= i
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFHBT T
6 months or less NEAKIAT 21,083 76,966
7 to 12 months +ZE=+EA 80,114 11,418
1 to 5 years —E=RF 10,932 12,404
Over 5 years AEFLE = -
112,129 100,788

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REE B 2 BERFENT -

follows:

Bank borrowings

HK$'000
T T
RITEE 2.9%

2015
—ET—ARF

HK$'000
TAET

2.3%

As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates, the
carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair

values and all balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. PETTEI(E ©

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as

23 IRIEFTEH

HREMRITEERIEFE - BER
EEEEQFERE  MEBEHTR

EERIRE E MEERRBESTAT

follows:
2016 2015
—ET—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Deferred income tax assets: EEFTEREE -
— Deferred income tax asset to be —@+—EA’KkE
recovered after more than BIEFTSTHEE
12 months (323) (762)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFSHERE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —mt+_@AREEY
settled after more than 12 months ELEFTERREaE 1,443 2,105
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (cContinued) 23 EEMESH &)
The movement in the net deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities EBBELEHREHN(EE) AaE%H2 %
account is as follows: BT -
2016
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At 1 April RMEA—H 1,343 1,838
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAT - (1,513)
(Credited)/debited to consolidated income RiE&UkzER (BT A),/HI
statement (Note 32) (H13£32) (223) 1,002
Translation differences PE W =% - 16
At 31 March Rn=A=+—H 1,120 1,343
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities BEFMEBREERBERFRNZEE (K
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting StRPAE -G RERERIEE 2 &88) 1
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: I

Accelerated tax
Intangible assets depreciation Total
EE RIBITE &t

2015 2016 2015

“2-1F ZE-RE —T-1F ZE-Rf —ZT-AHF
HK$'000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000 = HKS$'000  HK$'000
TEx TER TER TER TER TEx

Deferred income tax liabilities ELFEHAR

At 1 April RUA—H 1,772 2,622 333 2,000 2,105 4,622
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLA

(Note 29) (H1i229) - - - (1513) - (1,513)
Credited to consolidated NEEUERTA

income statement (850) (850) 188 (154) (662) (1,004)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 922 1,772 521 333 1,443 2,105
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 23 ELEFTEH (&)

Decelerated tax
depreciation

Tax loss Total

HERENE

2016

—-Z
—=

HK$'000
TER

2015

—hE
HK$'000
TEx

HEEE A%
2016 2015 2016
“T-hF ZE-RE

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000

FEx TEx

2015
“Z-1F
HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
TR

Deferred income tax assets ERFEHEE
At 1 April REA—H (141) (1,859) (621) (925) (762) (2,784)
Charged/(credited) to NN G

consolidated income nk/ Gt A)

statement 100 1,702 339 304 439 2,006
Translation differences EHEE - 16 - - - 16
At 31 March R=ZA=1+—H (41) (141) (282) (621) (323) (762)

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has unrecognised tax losses RZZE—RE=ZA=+—8 " %tEad%

of HK$6,973,000 (2015: HK$3,881,000) for Hong Kong profits
tax purposes, which have no expiry, and unrecognised tax losses
of HK$34,525,000 (2015: HK$25,331,000) for PRC corporate
income tax purposes which will expire during year 2016 to year
2020. No deferred tax assets have been recognised for these tax
losses as the directors consider that it is not probable that the
temporary difference will be reversed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2016, deferred income tax liabilities of
HK$1,896,000 (2015: HK$1,817,000) has not been recognised
for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as the
Company controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it is not probable that these subsidiaries would distribute
earnings in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled
HK$37,923,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$36,350,000).

FlEsEms(MEAERERY) A%
B 5 oK 45 1 58 4 18 B3 186,973,000 %5 7T
(ZZE—FR % :3,881,000/7L) * #H
BrEMBHEME  ACERHES
18 534,525,000 T (=T — A F -
25,331,000 L) R =T —~F
FEE-Z-—NEFEIH -ARES
REEREZREA TSR A &5k E
B B ERZEH B EERETH
BEE -

MN-EBE—XRE=A=+—8 " &L
B Hi A E1,896,0008 T (—FE— R F :
1,817,000 7T ) WAL & THB AT 2
KREHBFERBENHRLEMHE - R
ABARRRZEFZERB AR ZKER
F o MZEMB AR TR & i
RDREF - R TE—RNFZA=Z+—
H 2 R H & R4 437,923,000 T
(ZZ—F4 : 36,350,000/ 7T) °
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24 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised — ordinary shares of

24

EE —BREECIETZ

EEIN

Number of
shares
BHEE

Nominal value

E{E
'000 HK$’000

1 T

HK$0.1 each =gl 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of 23717 R&E —SREE

HK$0.1 each 0. 18T BB
As at 1 April 2014 RZE—NFNA—H 272,294 27,229
Proceeds from shares issued upon RITE BB AR FERS B2 1 TR (D

exercise of options FriSs08 1,418 142
As at 31 March 2015 N_E—hF=A=1+—H 273,712 27,371
As at 1 April 2015 RZZE—RHFWMA—H 273,712 27,371
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise A T{F B AR RERS 221 TN

of options Fr8s0R 3,412 341
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=1+—H 277,124 27,712

25 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 6 August 2012. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company may grant share options to
certain grantees (including directors and employees) of the
Group to subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
this Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the
share capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors, and will
not be less than the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the trading day of granting the options and the average of the
closing prices of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of granting
the options.

25

BRE

ARABR-ZE——FE N\ ANBHEMER
ERTE([FEIRERT 2 ]) - RIEBARER
g ApElRmALES TERA(RE
EERES)HRBEREUREADRR
- RIBERET S RAEEFEM 2 (F
fA] Eo fth B AR A AT 81 5 HE R M R T 2 P
BRTEINBEREREITER A EET
BeRHEE TEBBAQRANTEHD
BITIRA30% - RBESHEZRET -
LB TLRABRMEE  SHEREREZ
R EEBRDERZFATRKTER
ZEEREMRBHIEEALS ARG
FHMXEAAREIRTE(UEaEA
%) o
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25 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 25

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during
the year are as follows:

BRE )

FARARITEBRESE 2ZFNT :

2016 2015
—E—RE “T-RF

Average Average

exercise exercise
price in HK$  Number of price in HK$ ~ Number of
per share options per share options

BR2FH Bz 15
BRIEE BREHE EToEE  BREHE
‘000 ‘000
T 1
At 1 April REOA—H 1.786 8,498 1.658 4,964
Granted during the year FREHRL 2.401 18,910 2.158 5,200
Exercised 217 1.755 (3.412) 139 (1,418)
Lapsed BAM 1.780 (100) 1.770 (248)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 23,896 8,498

As at 31 March 2015, all the outstanding options were fully
vested.

As at 31 March 2016, all the outstanding options were fully
vested and exercisable, except for the 4,210,000 options
granted on 7 January 2016, which have a vesting period 1 year
and are only exercisable on 6 January 2017.

Options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2016
resulted in 3,412,000 shares (2015: 1,418,000) being issued at
a weighted average price of HK$1.755 each (2015: HK$1.396).
The related weighted average share price at the time of exercise
was HK$1.95 (2015: HK$1.95) per share.

W-E—HE=F=+—H8  FAH*
132 B EHRE -

$:4,210,0007 fE R R = —RFE—H
+tARE(EEBHA—FUEN-ZT
—tF—AXRNBAFIE)IN RZF
—RNE=ZA=+—8 " FIEHEERTEZ
BRED TGS -

BHE_Z—X"F=ZA=+—HLFE
TEBRESIIZRNMEFTHERSR
17558 L (ZZF—HF : 13968 7T)
173,412,000 B H (ZE—HF
1,418,000 % f& 15 ) © 171 BF 2 A5 B8 AN 4E
FHRREBER1.958T( - —RF
1.95%87T) °
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25 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) B
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the RERKRITEBIREZBIBHE KETE
following expiry dates and exercise prices: BuF :

Number of options Vested percentages
EBREHA =N g
Exercise

Expiry date price 2016 1 2016
ZI8 A THE =T-—~F

'000

T
Directors BE
20 March 2019 —“NE=A=FH 1.780 800 800 100% 100%
18 January 2020 S A 2.158 2,200 2,200 100% 100%
Employees 1=
28 April 2015 “Z-RFMA=TNH 1.331 - 110 - 100%
21 October 2016 “Z-R"EtAZ+-H 1.750 36 240 100% 100%
20 March 2019 “T-NF=RA=+H 1.780 450 1,948 100% 100%
18 January 2020 —Z-TF-HA+)\H 2.158 1,300 3,000 100% 100%
9 July 2020 “E-TFELANH 2.260 4,700 - 100% -
15 July 2019 —T-hEF+A+HH 2.800 10,000 - 100% -
6 January 2021 —E-—F—HFXH 2.142 4,210 - 23% -
Others Hith
20 March 2019 “Z-NF=AZ+H 1.780 200 200 100% 100%

23,896 8,498
The weighted average fair value of the options granted during REBEE_Z-—REF=ZA=+—HIEFE

the year ended 31 March 2016 determined using the binomial
option pricing model was approximately HK$0.406, HK$0.205
and HK$0.251 (2015: HK$0.377) per share respectively. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$2.26,
HK$2.80 and HK$2.142 (2015: HK$2.140) as at the grant date,
exercise price as shown above, volatility of 33.21%, 28.75%
and 31.06% (2015: 35.301%), expected life of options of five,
four and four years (2015: five years), expected dividend yield
of 6.92%, 6.92% and 9.06% (2015: 7.611%) and annual risk-
free interest rate of 0.97%, 0.87% and 0.94% (2015: 1.020%)
respectively. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over a period of five, four and five
years (2015: five years) before the date when the options were
granted.

W&tﬁzﬁﬁﬂx%%ﬁﬁ HA A EEE
NEEZNEFHRAFED N AETR
0.4067% 7T * 0.20578 75 }2.0.251/8 7t (=
T—RAF 03778 L) c ZERNZE
THALBE AN KL B ZE2.268
JC ~ 2.80B T 21428 (ZE—RF ¢
2.14087T) ~ EXFTIRZITHESE  KiE
33.21% ~ 28.75% K 31.06% (—Z—F
% :35301%) - ERECEHFEFHA
F MERMNF(ZZE—RHF: 5F)
%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ B2 6.92%  6.92% £ 9.06%
—HF 7611%) RFEERR
%IJ$0.97% 0.87% K% 0.94% (—ZE—F
F :1.020%) © IZTEHRRR B B3 2 1R 4R
EEZRBIHBEARARRZRERE
REEREBHIIAF  NERAF(Z
1T AF)HPEBEKETE -
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26 RESERVES

Share
premium

HKS$'000
TEL

Capital
reserve

2015/165F 3R

Share-
based
compen-
sation
reserve
SRR
530
g
HK$'000
TAL

fet &

Property
revaluation
reserve

E
HK$'000
TEn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

Available-
for-sale
financial
asset
reserve

HK$'000
TEn

Exchange
reserve

31
HK$'000
Th

Retained
eamings

HK$’OOO
TATL

aat
HK$'000
BT

At 1 April 2014 R=E-NENA-A 63,778 10,591 934 - 5,785 39060 372,284 492432
Exchange difference arising AEEIHEAR

on translation of foreign FECERES

subsidiaries - - - - - (2,350) - (2,350)
Fair value gains on available- RNESBEEL

for-sale financial assets AEERE - - - - 1,936 - - 1936
Fair value gain on land and EAZRENER TR

building upon transfer to BF7 AT ENG

investment property - - - 6,790 - - - 6,790
Employee share option scheme:  [ESEMRIE 2
Proceeds from shares issued upon ~ FAfT{EEERIER 217

exercise of options BRipfrEzE 1837 - - - - - - 1837
Transfer of reserve upon TR RER

exercise of options EEEE 457 - (457) - - - - -
Options lapsed B - - (221) - - - 21 -
Value of employee services EEREZBE - - 2,951 - - - - 2,951
Profit for the year ER T - - - - - - 170406 170,406
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - - - - (54,633 (54,633)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-EE=A=1+-H 66,072 10,591 3,207 6,790 1,721 36,710 488278 619,369
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26 RESERVES (continued)

26 fAfEe)

Share- Available-
based for-sale
Capital ~ compen-  Property financial
Share  reserve sation revaluation asset  Exchange Other  Retained
premium (Note) reserve reserve reserve reserve  Reserve  earnings
ke
BRGE ARG ngE  UkEE
&R W)  MeRfE  EfRE fife  EXGE HibEE RERA EH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tn Tin Thn TEn Tn Thn Thn Thn Thn
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-15MA-A 66,072 10,591 3,207 6,790 1721 36,710 - 488278 619369
Exchange difference arising BEEINHBAR
on translation of foreign FELRLZE
subsidiaries - - - - - (18216 - - (18216)
Fair value gains on available- TRNEHEEE,
for-sale financial assets ATHEYE - - - - 3320 - - - 3320
Release of exchange reserveupon S —WHEATE
deregstration of a subsidiary ZRERGE - - - - - (m3m) - - (13m)
Employee share option scheme: VEE o B
Proceeds from shares issted upon MIFEREREIRN
exercise of options s 6,319 - - - - - - - 6,319
Transfer of reserve upon RTiERRIER
exercise of options ElEE 1,336 - (1,336) - - - - - -
Options lapsed BRI RE - = (37) S - - - 3 -
Value of employee senvices [EEMRK2BE - - 4,134 - - - - - 4,134
Changes in ownership interests R-FNBATZ
in subsidiaries without REEERE
change of control (sRTESS) - - - - - - (2022) - (2,022
Profit for the year EREN = = - - - - - 80038 80,038
Dividends paid EIRRE = S S = = = - (M561)  (41.561)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=f=1-A 13121 10,591 5,968 6,790 1,04 7151 (2022) 526792 640,038
Note: Bt -

The capital reserve of the Group includes the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate
amount of the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in
September 2002.

AEBERRFERENR_ST_FNLAREERE
B EAE BN IR R R METE BREER
PR BERE A R 2 A R Ity B R 2 =58 -
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27 REVENUE 27 W&
The Group is principally engaged in the research and AEEFENEETER BARBR
development, manufacture and sales of electronic products, ERHE R SLEEEEER - F
moulds and plastic products. Revenues recognised during the AR Z WZ0T -

year are as follows:

2016 2015
— i —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx T

Sales of goods BEYHERE
— electronic products —EBFEmMm 1,354,320 1,317,435
— moulds and plastic products — B R RERBER 13,780 24,489
1,368,100 1,341,924

28 OTHER INCOME 28 HEA

2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Government grants BT B 1,221 -
Scrap sales RERHEEE 251 527
Rental income He A 360 120
Others Hib 351 -
2,183 647
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29 OTHER GAINS, NET 29 Hfttlzm @ FER
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Net foreign currency exchange gain b 5 iz TR 1,969 5,402
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative eI AZ AFE
financial instruments Wiz, (&518) 2,235 (1,928)
Net realised gain on derivative TESMTIAY
financial instruments BRI FEE 1,515 2,820
Fair value loss on an investment property ~—IBRAME 7 AT EEE (400) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note a) &M B QT s (M sta) - 149,427
Factory relocation costs (Note b) BER B A (A 7ED) - (32,405)
Release of exchange reserve upon S — R B A R ARRR
deregistration of a subsidiary (Note ¢) b 5 (& (Mfatc) 11,343 -
16,662 123,316

Note:

(a)

On 19 December 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase, and the Group conditionally agreed to sell, 100%
equity interests in Universal Gain Assets Limited (“UGL") at cash
consideration of RMB138,000,000 (approximately HK$174,050,000).
UGL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which has interests
in a piece of land in the PRC. In addition, the purchaser conditionally
agreed to grant the Group the right to repurchase certain of the
re-developed properties in future upon the completion of the re-
development. The Group received a deposit of HK$17,595,000
during the year ended 31 March 2013, which was included in trade
and other payables as at 31 March 2013. On 23 September 2014, the
Group completed the disposal of UGL and recognised a disposal gain
of approximately HK$149,427,000.

Bt -

(a)

R-E——F+_A+hIAB A&EBF]
N EERE Bt EREHKE
RAEBENASEEEREREEER
Universal Gain Assets Limited ( [ UGL | )
Z2100% K ReREBEAARK
138,000,000 7T ( #J 174,050,000 7T ) °
UGLTY AR B Z 2 EWBAR] - MERF
Bz —iRTitEE = - 1tih - EFER
BKHEREZEAEREXERRRAANEERD
AEEETEEMEZEN BEZF
—=Z®=ZA=1+—HLtEE KEEDK
EU%€17,595,000%8 70 - EER =T —=
F=A=1+—Hit A\ENESERREAM
ERER R-_ZE—HWNFEAA-+=8 -
AEBEDZRHEEUGLEER S KED
149,427,000 7T °
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2 3T L
29 OTHER GAINS, NET (Continued) 29 Hfttlhs - F8 ()
Notes: (Continued) Kt - (&)
(@)  (Continued) (a) (&)
The following table summarises the consideration received for the TREAREEHBRARWIRZRE LR
disposal of subsidiaries and the amounts of the identifiable assets and HEESMEEZAIBAEERERBZE
liabilities disposed at the disposal date. o
HK$’000
FHIT
Consideration RE 174,050
Net asset value of subsidiaries MEBARZEEFE (24,623)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QRS 149,427
Assets and liabilities disposed: PEZEERERE
— property, plant and equipment (Note 6) — ¥ - B NMRE(ME6) 23,909
—land use right (Note 7) — T FRRE (A7) 2,227
— deferred tax liabilities (Note 23) —RIERIA G E(H7223) (1,513)
Net asset value BEFE 24,623
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries comprise: HEMBARMSRIERE
HK$’000
T
Cash consideration received BHREeNRE 156,455
Deposit received Bluze 17,595
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARAEHIE 174,050
(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group relocated certain by HE-_ZFT—RF=-A=+—HLFE XK
of its manufacturing plants to Dongguan and had incurred relocation SEREETHERFEREEZRS - WiE
costs of approximately HK$32,405,000. A RB R AN#)32,405,0008 7T ©
() During the year ended 31 March 2016, a subsidiary was deregistered. (0 HE-Z—XRF=ZA=1+—HLEEE &K
In this connection, the cumulative amount of the exchange reserve NEEHE B AR - Bt - ZMBA
of this subsidiary of HK$11,343,000, previously recognised in other AIRAEREME2ER AP ERL 25170
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, was reclassified a2 BB RET© 511,343,000/ 7T
to the consolidated income statement upon the deregistration of this REHZMNBARRENDEERE K
subsidiary. R o
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30 EXPENSES BY NATURE 30 HMEEID 22X

FEAHERAN - DHEREEBRAKL—
RETBRERBRZFASOMMT -

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed
as follows:

2016 2015
—E-REF

—ET—RF
HK$'000
T

HK$"000
TET

Cost of inventories FERA 1,011,154 992,393
Depreciation of property, plant ME -« BEMRETE

and equipment 25,554 25,295
Amortisation of land use rights ot {5 AR 8 1,153 1,218
Amortisation of intangible assets A 5,710 5,154
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEWE  BEEREZ

and equipment sk (121) 31
Operating lease rental of premises BF2EEHEOES 2,778 3,941
Employee benefit expense (including ETRMHEZ(REEENS)

directors’ emoluments) (Note 36) (H17236) 170,489 178,887
Provision for impairment of loan B EYGRIB R E R

receivable (Note 18) (H17Z18) = 2,750
Provision for impairment of interest R—EBE R E 2w &k

in an associate and amount due JE U — B & A B 5RIE

from an associate BB = 1,752
Write-back on provision for FERERERRD

inventory impairment (825) (2,480)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE &
— Audit services — 2B AR 2,470 2,370
— Non-audit services — IEZ RS 555 773
Commission expense HEREx 10,436 9,191
Other expenses HAtbF 68,938 66,530
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKA « DHEMIEES

selling expenses and general and AR —f% K&

administrative expenses THEREERMESE 1,298,291 1,287,743
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31 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Interest income from:

KA TSR ZMEHA

31 MEWARBERAN

2016 2015
S S

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT

— bank deposits —RITIFHK 1,090 733
— bond investment —EHFEE 430 526
— Overdue interest received from —BERPUEGE TS
customers 2,041 313
Finance income BB WA 3,561 1,572
Interest expense on: LATRIEE 2 FIEBRX
- bank borrowings —HRITEE (3,305) (3,335)
— discounting of interest on — H b EUGRIE R BITIR
other receivable - (1,173)
(3.305) (4,508)
Less: amount capitalised B EEREBEL
on qualifying assets BENMcEER 309 1,144
Finance costs BEM AR (2,996) (3,364)
Finance income/(costs) — net BMEUWA,(BRA) — F5 565 (1,792)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

32 FrEBIFAX

(A) BERMUDA AND BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS

INCOME TAX

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. The Company’s subsidiaries in the British Virgin
Islands are incorporated under the International Business
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

(B)

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

for the year.

(A) BRENRRBELESEH

(B)

ARABE_ZT-AFRIRPER
ERIE - ARARERBRIEEZ
B 188 2 ) O AR 1 2 8 s 2 B S B
BFAEMMAT - Ft RS EE
LESPIEH -

BBREHR
BEMBHRNUBE165%(=F
—hF  16.5% ) RAFE M ER
O M B o
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32

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(@)

(D)

(E)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
corporate income tax at 25% (2015: 25%) effective from
1 January 2008.

MACAO TAXATION

Suga Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a subsidiary
established in Macao and is exempted from Macao
Complementary Tax.

THE AMOUNT OF INCOME TAX CHARGED TO
THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
REPRESENTS:

32 FiS%iBE @)

(Q

(D)

(E)

RS R

N E A B A 2 BB A B /R
25% (=T —FHF : 25% ) Bt
Fisfi B —ETNFE—F—HAE
R o

BB
BERMMEEEREARARR
RRFIRIZ 2 HIB AR - S BURP]
FrSmsER -

BEeWaERMRZAESE
BT :

2016 PAON )
—E—RF —E-—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Current income tax: & HAPTSH

- Hong Kong profits tax — BTG 7,807 4,163
— Income tax outside Hong Kong —BBEINTIE 1,752 1,567
— Over-provision in prior years — B FEBERE (740) (1,034)

Deferred income tax (credit)/expense EIEFTSRE(RR),/Fx
(Note 23) (H1#223) (223) 1,002
8,596 5,698
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32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 32 FrSwiF(#)

(F) THE INCOME TAX ON THE GROUP’S PROFIT (F) AEBEBRATEBANER Z S
BEFORE INCOME TAX DIFFERS FROM THE FE L B BRI HERAE I8
THEORETICAL AMOUNT THAT WOULD ARISE WEEBMTE - FEUT ¢
USING THE TAXATION RATE IN HONG KONG
AS FOLLOWS:

2016 AN )
—E—RF —E-hF
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET T
Profit before income tax FR PS8BT @ A 87,907 175,712
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%  1£16.5%(=—ZF—H4F :
(2015: 16.5%) 16.5% )M &G E 14,505 28,992
Effect of different income tax rates on  FEEINTE £ U ALK A
income arising outside Hong Kong PRIFFSME & (2,542) 10,434
Tax loss not recognised RERTIBEE 1,635 6,615
Expenses not deductible for TR AT 2 2
income tax purpose 4,390 5,328
Income not subject to income tax BRSBTS 2B (8,568) (44,427)
Over-provision in prior years BT FEEERE (740) (1,034)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BB KRR IAE B
tax losses (84) (210)
Income tax expense Frigfiz it 8,596 5,698
There is no tax charge relating to components of other MEBIE S EH a2 E W ATER
comprehensive income. B -
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(A) BASIC
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

(A)

33 ZRAER

=WiN
BRERZF TR AR RES AR
IR TR AF A E 1T @A 2 0
R EGTE -

Profit attributable to owners of the KREVEE AEGRF
Company (HK$'000) (F#871) 80,038 170,406
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 37T & @A hniE TR
shares in issue ("000) (Fh%) 276,576 272,442
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERER GE) 28.94 62.55
(B) DILUTED (B) #'%

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive
potential ordinary shares which is the share options
granted to employees. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

BREFARN N RERAE BT
BEBERCBRNERT ABET
FE 5 & 58 R INHE T 29 B 8R4 A
H-ARBBE-—REEHTER
B - BB B 2 FE AR - 5AME
BHEmMS - AR EIRAEHR
ATEBERE RBEZSEERE

KetE - BEARQIFEUARRD
Ak FEmERE)BAZKRND

BB o LA EFEZBRMNEE
75 SRR AR BB AR R 1T 1 2 AR 3R AT
HIR D 8RB LB

Profit attributable to owners of the KRNBVHEE AEGEF]

Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 80,038 170,406
Weighted average number of ordinary & 317 % @ A% AN F 1A% 21

shares in issue ('000) (FR%) 276,576 272,442
Adjustments for share options ("000) R R (TFM0 471 622
Weighted average number of BREERN

ordinary shares for diluted earnings TSRS D RE 5 AR B

per share ("000) (F0) 277,047 273,064
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRRESERT GEWL) 28.89 62.41
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34 DIVIDENDS 34

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2016 were
HK$19,392,000 (HK7.0 cents per share) and HK$22,169,000
(HK8.0 cents per share) respectively. A dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2016 of HK8.0 cents per share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$22,177,000, is to be
proposed at the annual general meeting on 8 August 2016.
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

IR B

HE - ZT—XRE=A=1t—HILtFED
A% B Rl A19,392,0007 7T (AL 7.07%8
i) %22,169,00078 T (FFA%8.078(L) - #5
RZZE—AR"ENANEBNBRRBEFRS
TEBEREE T NF=ZA=1+—
BIEFENREERS.0EI(BKRE A
22,177,000/ 70) - ZEMBERERIER
BREZIERTAR S, o

2016 2015
—E—RE —“ZE—FhHF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

Interim dividend, paid, of HK7.0 cents 2R Hl ST AR

(2015: HK7.0 cents and special 7.08(ZE—R4F :

dividend HK5.0 cents) 7.0/ L R A RIRLE 5.0/ (1)

per ordinary share 19,392 32,781
Final dividend, proposed, of HK8.0 cents  ##k R BRI B G IR L@ IR

(2015: HK8.0 cents) B.OBN(=ZZF—h%F : 8.0/8

per ordinary share Il 22,177 22,169

41,569 54,950
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35 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN 35
A SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT CHANGE OF
CONTROL

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

On 8 July 2015, the Group acquired an additional 28% of
the issued shares of SGI Venture Limited for a consideration
of HK$920,000. The total deficits of the non-controlling
interests in SGI Venture Limited on the date of acquisition
was HK$176,000. The Group recognised a decrease in non-
controlling interests of HK$103,000 and a decrease in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,023,000.
Thereafter, the Group owned 80% in SGI Venture Limited.
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of SGI Venture
Limited on the equity attributable to owners of the Group
during the period is summarised as follows:

%—%Wﬁa ZEEREER
SE) (RIS E)

WA — R B B 2 FR/MER

R-ZE—HFLANH XEBMN
920,000/ T REBUWEEEERIE NE
RARIE TG 2 FEIN28% ERE ° {5
FRIB) B R A B AU EE B B2 JEiE
il 1 A 5 2 B AL A8 EE R 176,000/8 7T © AN
& B T R SE4E Il 1 220 42 103,000 7T
LR FIHA ANEGERRK 21,023,000
B e B ARBEHAEEHMRE D
BRARAZ80% M o HiA{E EHRIE)
NERAR B ERD G AL R
BEAEEER ZER T

HK$'000
THTT

Total deficits of non-controlling Fr U SR ) M M 2 2 S AL 4R 5R

interests acquired (103)
Consideration paid to B SIS 2 (B

non-controlling interests (920)
Excess of consideration paid RIEEERZENREZBLIY

recognised within equity (1,023)
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35 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN

A SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT CHANGE OF
CONTROL (continued)

On 1 February 2016, the Group acquired an additional 30%
of the issued shares of Happypaws International Limited for a
consideration of HK$230,000. The total deficits of the non-
controlling interests in Happypaws International Limited on the
date of acquisition was HK$769,000. The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$769,000 and
a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$999,000. Thereafter, the Group owned 100% in
Happypaws International Limited. The effect of changes in the
ownership interest of Happypaws International Limited on the
equity attributable to owners of the Group during the period is
summarised as follows:

35 R—EMER T

2015/165F 3R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 80 R P

\|:

7 > g
BE(EHELEED) )

RZZE—AREFE-_A—HB  XEEII
230,000 Tz REWEFRLERBR AR
NEVFEIN30% BTG - LB RE
BRARNUE BB 2 IR H S 2
54t 4838 769,000/ 7T ° ANEBMERIE

7 5l 1A A %5 Rk 0 769,00058 T M AN B
B A FE(RREZS R4 999,000 7T » E 1%
AEBHAERLEBBRERARZ100%
S - BHRALERBR AR AREAE
S AEERFARGEE Y
LREaianT

HK$'000
TET

Total deficits of non-controlling

P SR Il ME R 2t 2 S AL AR RR

interests acquired (769)
Consideration paid to BTSRRI S 2 R E

non-controlling interests (230)
Excess of consideration paid RERERENREZBLES

recognised within equity (999)
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36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 36 ETRAFEX(BIEEEME)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2016 2015
gAY S —E—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FiBT
Wages and salaries TERF® 151,743 154,983
Bonus TE4T 4,260 8,287
Staff welfare BT @&F 5,192 6,066
Share-based compensation expenses & 2 1< R B e = 4,134 2,951
Unutilised annual leave RIZEF R 35 31
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3RRE AR — EREM T 5,125 6,569
170,489 178,887
(A) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (A) BEESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest RAFEE  KEBREHEEHMA
in the Group for the year included two (2015: two) TEEME(ZE—hF : ME)E
directors whose emoluments are reflected in Note 37. The £ BECHEeE RMFE37RER o
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2015: three) FREMNEB=Z(ZE—RF :
individuals during the year are as follows: =B)ATZBEWT
2016 2015
gAY S —E—RhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiBT
Salaries, allowances and e ER N
benefits in kind BEYIER 5,417 5,345
Equity-settled share-based payments DAMEZRAEE - LA AEM 2
(E-N - -
Retirement benefits scheme RIRENET B TR
contributions 181 176

5,598 5,521
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36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 36 ETRAFEX(BIEEEME)

DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (continued) (#&)
(A) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (A) BEESHMALE)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B </ FLA T E -

Emolument bands
Nil - HK$ 1,000,000

Number of individuals
AEL
2016 2015

—E—RE —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

P < 40 ]
Z£21,000,0008 7T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 722,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 5 £2,500,00078 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ T2 3,000,00078 70 1 1

3 3
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EENERER(FBEMBIE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 622EF 5538315k « B EBIEIZE
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES 622GERN A (REEZEEHNRE
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES BHEFIREB EHRAEE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT ZIRE)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (A) EBRITBASME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of every director and the chief executive is REENTHABZMEE
set out below: T
For the year ended 31 March 2016: BHEZZT—X"F=-A=1+—HLHF
=38

Employer's
contribution to
a retirement
Salariesand  Share-based Discretionary benefit
Fees allowance  compensation bonuses scheme [E]

RN
s HEREE  ROMHEH Bt EL &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn Tikn Tin TEn Thn

Executive directors: HITES .
Dr.Ng ChiHo REZET

(Chairman) (ZE) - 4,149 - 4,260 45 8,824
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) B2%%5%(212E) = 1,926 - - 9% 2,022
Drlghen Cheuk fote ()~ SR SBE(H76) - 1034 - : 5 1,086
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Bt 180 - - - - 180

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE:

directors:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, EBRARED)
Joshua (Note (b)) 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven Pt 8 - - - = 8
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BATRE 216 = = = - 216
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RomEt 216 = = - - 216
Notes: Bt -
(@)  Appointed on 1 May 2015 (@ WKN-ZE—AFERA—AEZE
(b)  Resigned on 1 October 2015 by RZZT—RF+A—HEHE
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Restated):

Certain of the comparative information of directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 previously
disclosed in accordance with the predecessor Companies
Ordinance have been restated in order to comply with
the new scope and requirements by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

37 EEN@mNER (BEEDIE

Salaries and

Fees

allowance

it HeREM
HK$'000
TAL

HK$'000
ThT
Executive directors: HiTESE
Dr. Ng Chi Ho REFEL
(Chairman) (ZE) -
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chaiman) B&% %4 (/%) -
Non-executive director: HTEs.
M. Lee Kam Hung S 180

Independent non-executive  BUFHTES

directors:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua EESHF 240
M. Leung Yu Ming, Steven Py 19
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BAERE 198
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan (Note (3) o £(Hiira) 100

3,799
1,824

622EF 553831k ~ BEBIEPIZE

622GER A (REEZEENRE
FHRBIREEEHRAURE

ZE) #)

(A) EBRITBRAEME#)

BE_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIF
B (&&ES) :

SRREA AT A RERE -
—EE=A=+—AILEEEEH
4y ETUALBYTEEESI
HABBEPEREEBARY
5608 IR ©

Employer's

contribution to

a retirement

Share-based  Discretionary benefit
compensation bonuses scheme Total

12l
PREM BB ExE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr BT

718 4,040 380 8,997
- - 91 1915

- - - 20
- - - 198
- - - 198
- - - 100
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Appointed on 15 October 2014
Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no retirement benefits,
payments or benefits in respect of termination of directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
diretcors’ services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2016, there are no loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled bodies
corporate and connected entities (2015: None).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: None).

== ki~

622EF =

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

37 ESERMHENER(BEEDIE
3831k + FBENIE

622GERN A (REEZEEHNRE
BHBRGIREBLEHRAEE
ZE) #)

(A) EBRITHAEME2)

Hrat -

(a)

0)

(iii)

R-ZF—MFE+ATHAERE
BRRNEN R EERAR T

HE_ZT-XF=A=+—BHLHF
B BERL I EERBERKE
BEX SRR KERN - FREE
MFES  WEEFEEEMNKEA
(ZZ—RF: &) -

AFE =N REESRE 2K E

BE-_ZT—R"EF=-A=+—HI*F
B BERSE = ARE=HERE
HEERB2RE(ZZE—AF -
) o

BRANES  HESEHNZES
AANBREBREEAMECHER
BAZmAZER  EEREEM
RHZER

WZE-—RE=ZA=+—0 " #iE
NEE  RIEFEARRKEEER
BRAZRAZER  EEREEM
RGER(ZZE—0F : |) -

BEENRG  RHAAHNZIERE

m

REREIBE_ZT - RF=HA
=t RIEFENEMER - HE
FEARRIERRINT AARARE
EREPHEEERES (THRERX
ME)MEASREEBEBALERN
X5 RFKAH(ZF—AF:
&) -
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38 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 38 KEXBEEZRE
Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated from FRRF EELSERTEAIR S HRN
operations as follows: TS ¢

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year F R 79,311 170,014
Adjustments for: R
— Income tax expense — TS HiFRx 8,596 5,698
— Finance income — BB A (3,561) (1,572)
— Finance cost — BB AR 2,996 3,364
— Depreciation of property, plant and — % BEMEREBITE
equipment 25,554 25,295
— Amortisation of land use rights — b AR B 1,153 1,218
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EIEEE 5,710 5,154
— Gain on disposals of property, plant —HEME  BER
and equipment 2 W (121) (31
— Share based compensation expenses  — B& 191~ TR BB =% 4,134 2,951
— Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative —PTAEEBMIAY
financial instruments NHEME) EiE (2,235) 1,928
— Fair value loss on an investment ——IHIREWHE L
property NHEEE 400 -
— Share of losses of associates — DL E R EEE 1,312 640
— Provision for impairment of interest in ~ — A — B & A 7 2 #E2E
an associate and amount due from FE U — BB & R B IR
an associate B = 1,752
— Provision for impairment on loan —EREBGIE R ERE
receivable - 2,750
— Release of exchange reserve upon — 5L 35 —FEIMT B A mR
deregistration of a subsidiary R PE 5 (11,343) -
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —ERB ATz W - (149,427)
— Write-back of provision for inventory — — 17 &5 E & &7 0
impairment (825) (2,480)
111,081 67,254
Changes in working capital: BEESE)
— Inventories —FE 26,282 (42,960)
— Trade and other receivables — JEYE Z R R B A Y RIE (1,916) 5,202
— Amount due from a joint venture — R —HaEERIE - (404)
— Amount due from an associate — Y — B & A RIZRIE (431) -
— Trade and other payables — BB SRR R E MR A 4,033 (19,124)
Cash generated from operations REEXBEEZRE 139,049 9,968
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38 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 38 KEXBELEZHT )
(Continued)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE  BEMREBZASRERIE
comprise:
2016 2015
—E-—REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
F&T FAT
Net book value (Note 6) SREHE(Mit6) 15 1,058
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment gl 121 31
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERBES
plant and equipment FriSs08 136 1,089
39 COMMITMENTS 39 AiE
() OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS () REHNERE
At 31 March 2016, the Group had future aggregate RZZE—RF=A=+—08 &K%
minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises E Rt EMER BT AIREESE A
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: ARKRER 2 BB SEREAT -
2016 PAON )
—E—REF —E-—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT FT
Not later than one year —FR 2,709 779
Later than one year and not later than —&F&{BRFER
five years 1,109 430
3,818 1,209
(1) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (1) BEAEE
At 31 March 2016, the Group had the following capital R-E—XFZA=+—H  &&
commitments: BB T3 & ARHEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF

HK$°000 HK$°000
FTHET TAET

Contracted but not provided for: DETA B R -

— Property, plant and equipment —E - WEREE 5,412 27,200
— Equity investment in a subsidiary ~ — A —FEIHT B A 7 HIIAE

KE 19,200 -

24,612 27,200
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40 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 40

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by
an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% to 10% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
approximately 7% to 12% of the basic salaries of its employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

B ERIKER

AEEDAEFERERFSERHIE
REEEE([BEEFTE ) - #ESE
S LERMBAE  ABIUGEEAE
2o RigeESE AREREES
2 BIKIRCR S 1 R AP E A et
B EERREERAZS%EI0% °
— R NEE G EE — B

REME -

AEFBRRPBEAMRRRENZ R
E o REETEAMZEBEREREY
BAFEIER - AEEREBEEART
BRT%E12%HR - BRFEEHN - I
BEERINERARSIERRREN 2 H
BfE - BREHRKF BB ERRKE
BN 22 8ERE -

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao, the Group REBRPZRBIRRA - NREEDTHE
has arranged its Macao employees to join the government HEBMEELIIBFAESTEI (R
provident fund scheme (the “Macao Scheme”). The Group HE ) AEEKHEESANREAE
and its employees makes monthly contributions of MOP30 89 Rl R PTG B FR30RPTHE K 1558
and MOP15, respectively, per month to each employee to the FI%& - BB AETUON - WEER IR
Macao Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual REFBRRBENZ EMEE -

payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
monthly contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount
of the Group’s contributions to the aforementioned
pension schemes were approximately HK$5,125,000 (2015:
HK$6,569,000).

HE-_Z—XRE=A=+—BItFE "
AEEREMRRAKSFEEL Z #HR
HEEE L) 55,125,000 T (—ZZE—RF
6,569,000/& 7T ) °
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2016, 39.69% of the total issued shares of
the Company is owned by Superior View Inc., a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and 16.36% of the
total issued shares of the Company is owned by Billion Linkage
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Dr Ng Chi Ho,
a director of the Company, and Ms Lee Wai Fun, wife of Dr Ng
Chi Ho, respectively.

(A) TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES
In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during
the year, the Group has the following related party
transactions:

Sales of electronic products to
a minority shareholder of
a subsidiary

HEBTFES

41 EREEALIRS

R-Z—XNE=ZA=+—8  ARFE
BTN #8582 39.69% JI I fE R B IR K
EfS ML 2 A F]Superior View Inc. %
B MARBEBEITRNDETERZ16.36%
DHERBEXBES MK L Z AR
Billion Linkage Limited# A& > AN E@H R
IRATHRABEARREETRERIEL
REBRLT(REFELZETF) °

(A) EHEBEEALRS

BRESINEEFTRN SR - KK
RENZHEIT T BREEATR
5

2016
=E-RF

2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
FiBT

HK$°000
TExT

A —EH B A E 2z DR

6,796 14,465

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions
were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s
business and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

(B) KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
The aggregate remuneration of key personnel
management, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid employees, as
disclosed in Note 36 and 37, is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term

EERR LEXSRAKERE
EEBIET AR T BRI IE 2 IR

#ETT e

(B) =EEEEIRMN
FEEEEBASBZHMEEABED
NARREBERETREFEEZ
R (AMIFE36 MM sE37#FE) » &
L NE

2016
S

AN )
—ET—RF
HK$'000
F#T

HK$°000
THET

e hHEMmEREE RN

employee benefits 18,219 16,754
Post-employment benefits BEE g 1T 810 724
19,029 17,478
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 41 BEEALRZ @)

(C) YEAR-END BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (O EHBEBEEALZHF

Amount due from an associate

2016
—E—RE

HK$"000
TExT
R — IR & A RIFIE

IR 4 £

I =

2015
— a4
HK$'000
F#T

(Note 1) (H1az1) 431 -
Amounts due to minority BT AR 2 D BHLR
shareholders of subsidiaries SIE(HEE2)
(Note 2) 2,016 3,315
Amounts due from minority JEULH B A F) 2 D ERER
shareholders of subsidiaries SRIE(ME22)
(Note 2) - 71
Amounts due from a joint venture  JEU—FEIA B ERIA
(Note 3) (Hf7E3) 404 404
Note 1: The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in Kiatr - BERMEALTZEHZIGERRK 128
Note 12. 5o
Note 2: The balances were unsecured, repayable on demand and Kotz ZSESAEERT  REREELRR
interest free, and are included in other payables and other B W5 BIEE A E fth FE A 3B R E Ath fE
receivables, respectively. WWERIE
Note 3: The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in Kiets3 - BEREA LT 2 EH 2 KRR 135
Note 13. Zo

®
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY KARREERER
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
—E-RE —T—RHF
=A=+-8 =A=t+-RH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HizF FHEIT AT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RH B A Rz #Ez 67,371 67,212
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables JEUE SRR &
H A FEUGRIR 354 221
Tax recoverable AT EF IR 160 253
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 140,230 139,766
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRESEEY 437 778
141,181 141,018
Total assets BEEAE 208,552 208,230
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 8RN R B A S 5RIE 2,667 2,424
Total liabilities BERE 2,667 2,424
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners NAREE AEE S
of the Company
Share capital RN 27,712 27,371
Other reserves H (@) 144,567 134,151
Retained earnings {REB &R @) 33,606 44,284
Total equity R AEEE 205,885 205,806
Total equity and liabilities xR EERE 208,552 208,230
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board RKABBEEABREN ZZE—RNFA
of Directors on 23 June 2016 and was signed on its behalf. “t-HEEEZeHE WA TIES
REEE -
Ng Chi Ho Ma Fung On
RER BEZR
Director Director
EZ EZE

®
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42 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 42 A AG>SEABEREES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued) )

NOTE (a) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY MizE(a) <D B B

Contributed  Share-based

Share surplus compensation Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
4 IGENEN
A% 15%) RN RE&F| =
HK$" OOO HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FAT FHIT FAT
At 1 April 2014 R-Z—Mm4mA—A 63,778 64,872 934 24,062 153,646
Employee share option scheme: g B IETE] ¢ = _ _ _ _
Proceeds from shares issued TR AR IR 31T
upon exercise of options W& 2 Fr8 338 1,837 = = = 1,837
Transfer of reserve upon RITE B AR
exercise of options SRS 457 = (457) = =
Options lapsed B R AR = = (227) 221 -
Value of employee services BERSEZBE - - 2,951 - 2,951
Profit for the year F AT - - - 74,634 74,634
Dividends paid EIRE - - - (54,633) (54,633)
At 31 March 2015 N-ZT—hEF
=ZA=+—8H 66,072 64,872 3,207 44,284 178,435
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—AFMA—AH 66,072 64,872 3,207 44,284 178,435

Employee share option scheme: {8 S BEMET2] -

Proceeds from shares issued TR AR R R 351 T
upon exercise of options Betn 2 FTiSsIE 6,319 = = = 6,319
Transfer of reserve upon T BB AR RS
exercise of options RS 1,336 - (1,336) = -
Options lapsed BR KRR = = (37) 37 =
Value of employee services EERBEE = = 4,134 = 4,134
Profit for the year F N F = - - 30,846 30,846
Dividends paid BIRARE - - = (41,561) (41,561)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R
EFEG=E 73,727 64,872 5,968 33,606 178,173
Note: Bet

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal
amount of shares issued and the book value of the underlying net assets of
subsidiaries acquired in return.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium.

BARSRIEERIATBEITRN 2 H{E R E
MEBLRERFEERTBE L EE -

BEBEBFRE-NN\—FREE - BARKA DK
FRER - MRS ATRIEPIR - Bl B AR
BRSO BREHIEL DK - )4 R 7] B AT
WEH D IRRBOAEERSMAE  RHEEE
ZABEREENERE EEBTRAREMNE
Bz AN BEL AR -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=-Z—~"E=A=1+—RAI&E

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below:

Consolidated results

Revenue

Operating profit

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
T
REREE
Wzs 1,241,997
SRR 99,962
PRETIE R AT E R 101,843
SRS (8,757)
KLDAER NEEER

93,252

AEEBEREABERZGEFKENARES
BEMABHEFHIMT

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-HLFE

2013

“T-=F
HK$'000
TET

1,107,488
81,806
82,817
(5,364)

77,841

2014
—F-mF
HK$'000
THBT

1,244,828
90,661
91,597

(10,688)

81,487

2015
“T-hF
HK$'000
TET

1,341,924
178,144
175,712

(5,698)

170,406

2016
=25
HK$'000
7

1,368,100
88,654
87,907
(8,596)

80,038

2012

—E—C-F
HK$'000
T

2013

HK$'000
THET

As at 31 March
R=B=1+—H

2014
—T-MmEF
HK$'000
THAL

2015
“T-R%F
HK$'000
THT

2016

HK$'000
TR

Consolidated assets and liabilities HZAEEREE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 116,678 117,366 200,943 257,317 263,236
Investment property e=vES - - - 10,100 10,000
Land use rights T ERE 4,159 60,798 58,973 55,528 53,291
Intangible assets BV EE - 21,046 15,892 12,372 7,251
Goodwill GES 1,059 3,949 3,949 3,949 3,949
Interests in associates SN 1,733 1,868 1,702 - 3,876
Amount due from an associate JEdr— el & A B F A 267 267 267 - =
Long-term loan receivables REEFRIENGIR 16,250 16,575 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset At HENBEE 2,679 4,323 7,547 13,358 16,678
Financial assets at fair value through AT ELAEHZ

profit or loss - long term BREE-RY 6,993 1,279 - - =
Bonds investments - long term BHRE R 9,109 7,711 7,71 7,711 7,711
Deferred income tax assets EEFMEHEE 3,665 3,524 2,811 762 323
Other non-current receivables HihIEmEN IR - 3,875 852 1,658 4,118
Current assets TEEE 504,869 513,543 540,816 586,673 610,815
Current liabilities ELB=NE (204,985) (174,534) (270,554) (289,702) (301,542)
Net current assets MEBEERE 299,884 339,009 270,262 296,971 309,273
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERTEEE 462,476 581,590 570,909 659,726 679,706
Long term borrowings RHEE (22,463) (85,532) (47,731) (12,405) (10,932)
Other non-current liabilities HMERBBE - (17,595) - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities EXEFMEHEE (2,807) (5,759) (4,649) (2,105) (1,443)
Total equity P Fagiob] 437,206 472,704 518,529 645,216 667,331
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